
 

North Liberty City Council 
Work & Regular Sessions 

October 25, 2022 



 

City Administrator Memo 
 
    



 

 

To Mayor and City Council 
From Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Date October 21, 2022 
Re City Council Agenda October 25, 2022 

Work Session (6:00p.m. Start) 
Members of the of Big O Foundation will be at the work 
session to present a proposal to rename the Babe Ruth 
Baseball Field to Owen Skelley Field. Included in the packet 
is the proposal from the Foundation as well as emails of 
support (additional emails were received after the 
publication cutoff). There is no action slated for this 
agenda item; rather, it is an opportunity for the Foundation 
and City Council to discuss the proposal being presented.  

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and 
included in the packet: 

 City Council Minutes (10/11/22) 
 Claims 
 Liquor Licenses: 

o Andale Cantina  
o Rusciano’s 
o J & A Tap 
o Fiesta Restaurant 

 Change Order #3, Dubuque Street, Phase 1 Project, All American, Inc., $62,792.93 
 Pay Application #7, Dubuque Street, Phase 1 Project, All American, Inc., 

$362,066.33 
 Change Order #13, Ranshaw Way Phase 5, Peterson Contractors, Inc., $19,101.32 
 Pay Application #23, Ranshaw Way Phase 5, Peterson Contractors, Inc., 

$159,460.50 

Comprehensive Plan Presentation by RDG 
RDG Planning and Design will be in North Liberty next week to update the community on 
the draft Comprehensive Plan’s vision, goals and priorities. An in person open house will 
be held Wednesday, October 26 from 5-7 pm at the Community Center and a virtual 
open house will be held on Thursday, October 27 from 12-1 pm. People may register for 
the virtual website at northlibertyiowa.org/connectedtotomorrow. RDG will be 
attendance at Tuesday’s Council meeting to give a brief update on progress to date and 

Meetings & Events 
 
Tuesday, Oct 25 at 6:00p.m. 
City Council  
 
Tuesday, Nov 1 at 6:30p.m. 
Planning Commission 
 
Thursday, Nov 3 at 7:00p.m. 
Parks & Recreation Commission 
 
Monday, Nov 7 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council  
 
Tuesday, Nov 8 
Election Day 
 
 



when the plan is expected to be complete. Included in the background material is a 
presentation to guide the conversation with City Council. 

Watts Zoning Amendment, First Reading 
This property – 3123 West Hauer Drive NE – was recently annexed into the corporate 
limits of North Liberty. The rezoning to RS-4 Single-Unit Residence District would 
facilitate subdivision of the property when Remley Street gets installed in conjunction 
with the Mickelson development to the south. A good neighbor meeting was held on 
September 19. One person outside of City staff and the applicant attended the virtual 
meeting and had no objection to the request. The Planning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval at its October 6 meeting. Staff recommends approval as well. 

Dahnovan Holdings Zoning Amendment, First Reading 
This rezoning request – west side of North Kansas Avenue approximately 150 feet south 
of West Lake Road – to RM-12 Multi-Unit Residence District and C-3 Higher-Intensity 
Commercial District would facilitate development of the property with multi-unit 
residences and higher-intensity commercial/residential uses. A good neighbor meeting 
was held on September 19. A few people outside of City staff and the applicant attended 
the meeting and just had general questions about the type of development proposed. A 
concept plan laying out lots and public streets was recently submitted and is included in 
the background material. It is staff’s opinion that the west side of Kansas Avenue is a 
suitable location for higher intensity development. The Planning Commission 
unanimously recommended approval at its October 6 meeting. Staff also recommends 
approval. 

GRD Burleson LLC Zoning Amendment, First Reading 
This rezoning request – east side of North Liberty Road approximately 375 feet south of 
South Dubuque Street – to C-3 Higher-Intensity Commercial District would facilitate 
development of the properties with horizontal mixed-use development, which means 
there is a mixture of residential and commercial development is separate buildings. The 
applicant has indicated that there would be a cooperative approach to development with 
the properties to the north, which were recently annexed and zoned C-3 Higher-Intensity 
Commercial District. A good neighbor meeting was held on September 20. Three people 
(representing two properties) outside of City staff and the applicant attended the 
meeting and had general questions about the type of development proposed. A letter of 
objection from the property owners located at the southwest corner of the subject 
property has been submitted. While the C-3 district allows for higher-intensity uses, there 
is a code requirement and natural features that help mitigate some potential impacts. A 
20’ side yard setback is required when abutting residential zoning. Also, the topography 



of the site lends this area to being a drainage feature. The Planning Commission 
unanimously recommended approval at its October 6. Staff recommends approval as 
well. 

City Hall Project 
The agenda includes a Public Hearing regarding a general obligation loan agreement for 
an additional $500k to be borrowed for the City Hall Project, and a subsequent resolution 
approving the agreement. Approval of the resolution will allow the City to borrow an 
additional $500k for the project at a date to be determined in the future. Staff 
recommends approval of the resolution. 

Heritage Drive Stormwater Project 
The design for the Heritage Drive Stormwater Improvements project is complete and 
staff intends to solicit quotes for the project in mid-November. In order to construct the 
project, temporary easements are required and have been obtained. Included in the 
packet is the final easement agreement needed with a property owner adjacent to the 
project boundaries. Staff recommends approval of the easement. 

ARPA/SEATS Transit Contract 
Johnson County has used certain of its ARPA funds to expand SEATS services. North 
Liberty can elect to participate in this expanded service by agreeing to pay $20 per trip, 
out of the estimated current fully allocated cost of more than $40 per trip. The 
agreement for expanded service runs through June 30, 2023, or until the ARPA funds 
allocated for this purpose are exhausted, whichever occurs first. Staff recommends 
approval of the agreement. 

Front Street Place Lot 1 BMP Agreement  
MATNIC has provided an executed BMP agreement for the proposed multifamily 
development of Front Street Place Lot 1 on Jaro Way, as required by City Code. Staff 
recommends approval of the agreement. 

Solomon’s Landing Part One 
The Solomon’s Landing – Part One final plat proposes 18 RS-9 Single-Unit Residence 
lots, two RM-21 Multi-Unit Residence lots and three C-2-A Highway Commercial lots. The 
remaining portion of the overall development would be platted as “outlots”, which means 
they cannot be built on at this time. This limitation is due to Saratoga Lane and the traffic 
signal at its intersection with West Penn Street not being part of the approved 
construction plans for public improvements. The developer has opted to bond for the 



public improvements to obtain final plat approval rather than constructing and installing 
(and the City accepting) public improvements. Certificates of occupancy will not be 
issued until such improvements are installed and accepted. The final plat is consistent 
with the approved preliminary plat. Staff recommends approval of the final plat.   

The Evermore Part Two 
The owners of the property on the northeast corner of the intersection of Jasper Avenue 
and Forevergreen Road have executed a Developer’s Agreement and Stormwater BMP 
Maintenance Agreement in accordance with the City’s standard development 
procedures. The agreement contemplates the limited development of a single lot, a 
storm water detention basin, and paving Jasper Avenue as a short-term solution until 
pending litigation is resolved. Additional development will not occur until the permanent 
improvement of the adjacent roadway and intersection are completed. The BMP 
maintenance agreement contains the standard provisions required by Chapter 156 of the 
City Code. Staff recommends approval of both the agreements. 

County Road Maintenance Agreement 
This resolution updates the exhibits for the map and specific maintenance responsibilities 
for those areas of joint road maintenance between North Liberty and Johnson County. 
The amended exhibits account for the proposed development described by the 
Evermore Part Two Developer’s Agreement, and specifically for the City maintenance of 
paved areas, while the County will continue to be responsible for the gravel portion of 
Jasper Avenue. Staff recommends approval. 

 



 

Agenda 
 
    



 

City of North Liberty – 2022   Updated October 19, 2022, 10:00 a.m. 
Page: 1 

City Council 
October 25, 2022 

6:00 p.m.  
Work Session 

6:30 p.m. 
Regular Session  

Council Chambers  
1 Quail Creek Circle 

1. Call to order   
 

2. Roll call 
 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
 

4. Work Session (This session will not be recorded) 
A. Big O Foundation Presentation  

 
Regular Session will not begin before 6:30 p.m. 
5. Consent Agenda 

A. City Council Minutes, Work & Regular Sessions, October 11, 2022 
B. Claims 
C. Liquor License Application, Andale Cantina  
D. Liquor License Renewal, Rusciano’s 
E. Liquor License Renewal, J & A Tap 
F. Liquor License Renewal, Fiesta Restaurant 
G. Dubuque Street Phase 1 Project, Change Order Number 3, All American 

Concrete, Inc., $62,792.93 
H. Dubuque Street Phase 1 Project, Pay Application Number 7, All American 

Concrete, Inc., $362,066.33 
I. Ranshaw Way Phase 5, Change Order Number 13, Peterson Contractors, Inc., 

$19,101.32 
J. Ranshaw Way Phase 5, Pay Application Number 23, Peterson Contractors, 

Inc., $159,460.50 
 

6. Public Comment 
 
7. Engineer Report  

 
8. City Administrator Report  

 
9. Mayor Report 



City of North Liberty – 2022  Updated October 19, 2022, 10:00 a.m. 
Page: 2 

10. Council Reports 
 

11. Comprehensive Plan Presentation 
A. Presentation of Comprehensive Plan 

 
12. Watts Zoning Amendment 

A. Public Hearing regarding proposed zoning amendment 
B. Staff and Commission Recommendations  
C. First consideration of Ordinance Number 2022-23, An Ordinance amending 

the Zoning Map District designation for certain property located in North 
Liberty, Iowa from ID Interim Development District to RS-4 Single-Unit 
Residence District   

 
13. Dahnovan Holdings Zoning Amendment 

A. Public Hearing regarding proposed zoning amendment 
B. Staff and Commission Recommendations 
C. First consideration of Ordinance Number 2022-24, An Ordinance amending 

the Zoning Map District designation for certain property located in North 
Liberty, Iowa from O-RP Office and Research Park District to RM-12 Multi-
Unit Residence District and C-3 Higher-Intensity Commercial District  

 
14. GRD Burleson, LLC Zoning Amendment 

A. Public Hearing regarding proposed zoning amendment 
B. Staff and Commission Recommendations 
C. First consideration of Ordinance Number 2022-25, An Ordinance amending 

the Zoning Map District designation for certain property located in North 
Liberty, Iowa from ID Interim Development District to C-3 Higher-Intensity 
Commercial District 
 

15. City Hall Project  
A. Public Hearing on proposal to enter into a General Obligation Municipal Loan 

Agreement 
B. Resolution Number 2022-111, A Resolution taking additional action on 

proposal to enter into General Obligation Municipal Building Loan Agreement 
 

16. Heritage Drive Project 
A. Resolution Number 2022-112, A Resolution approving the Temporary 

Construction Easement Agreement between John Paul D. Rethwisch and the 
City of North Liberty  
 

 
 



City of North Liberty – 2022  Updated October 19, 2022, 10:00 a.m. 
Page: 3 

17. ARPA Transit Contract 
A. Resolution Number 2022-113, A Resolution approving the Contract for Same-

day On-demand Transit Services between Johnson County SEATS and the 
City of North Liberty  
 

18. Front Street Place Lot One 
A. Resolution Number 2022-114, A Resolution approving the Storm Water 

Management Facilities Maintenance Agreement and Easement between the 
City of North Liberty and MATNIC, LLC that establishes the terms and 
conditions under which stormwater management facilities will be maintained 
for The Front Street Place Lot One in the City of North Liberty, Iowa  

 
19. Solomon’s Landing Part One 

A. Resolution Number 2022-115, A Resolution approving the Final Plat and 
accepting the improvements for Solomon’s Landing Part One North Liberty, 
Iowa 

 
20. The Evermore Part Two 

A. Resolution Number 2022-116, A Resolution approving the Developer’s 
Agreement for The Evermore Part Two, North Liberty, Iowa  

B. Resolution Number 2022-117, A Resolution approving the Storm Water 
Management Facilities Maintenance Agreement and Easement between the 
City of North Liberty and DERS 380 LLC and Moyna North LLC that 
establishes the terms and conditions under which stormwater management 
facilities will be maintained for The Evermore Part two in the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa  

 
21. County Road Maintenance Agreement  

A. Resolution Number 2022-118, A Resolution modifying shared road 
maintenance responsibilities between Johnson County, Iowa and the City of 
North Liberty, Iowa  

 
22. Old Business 
 
23. New Business 

 
24. Adjournment  



 

Work Session  
Big O Foundation 

Presentation 
 
    



To: North Liberty City Council 
Re: Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Baseball Field Renaming 
Date: October 19, 2022 
  
Owen’s Story 
Owen Skelley and his family moved to North Liberty, IA in 2015.  From the moment they 
became community members Owen continued his involvement in youth baseball.  First, 
through the Tigers Baseball organization in North Liberty, and then through Perfect Game, 
Sticks, Diamond Dreams and Liberty High School Baseball. Owen’s love of sports, especially 
baseball was very important and rewarding to him.  He was always striving to get better and 
was a dedicated team member.   
  
On March 3, 2022 Owen Skelley ended his life after a two year battle with mental illness.  Owen 
battled silently, never wanting to burden his family and friends with his struggles.  Even through 
his mental health battle he could always pick someone up when they were feeling down 
regardless of the mood he was in. Improving and building up others was his highest priority. He 
was full of life, love, and generosity.  He was always concerned about the well‐being of others 
and strived to be inclusive. Owen’s death devastated so many, but one positive from this 
tragedy is that it has brought our community together. Friends, family, and The Big O 
Foundation have made it their mission to keep Owen’s memory alive and to support and 
educate others about mental health and suicide. 
 
About The Big O Foundation 
The mission of The Big O Foundation is to serve and support children, teenagers and their 
families that are facing mental health challenges. We share Owen’s story to spread mental 
health education, draw our community together, and support the welfare of local youth. Our 
resources are used to keep Owen’s light shining by giving back to the community and spread 

awareness about mental illness and suicide. The Big O Foundation is in final approval to 
become a 501(c)(3) tax exempt charitable organization 
 
 
Proposal 
The Big O Foundation would like to propose that the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Baseball Field 
be renamed to the “Owen Skelley Field”. In partnership with the City of North Liberty, local 
organizations and businesses, The Big O Foundation will use the venue to tell Owen’s story, 
provide mental health education and resources to youth & their families and live out the 
foundation mission. 
 
  
Our Why 
Owen’s love for baseball is undeniable and we want to honor his life, and love for bringing 
people together.  The Owen Skelley Field would give older youth and high school teams a venue 
to practice, play and host tournaments.  The city currently doesn’t have another 13/14U field, 
other than Liberty High School where scheduling is limited.  Most important, this field would 



allow The Big O Foundation to spread the word about mental health awareness by supporting 
physical activity, displaying mental health resources at and around the field, hosting mental 
health awareness events, and creating a sense of belonging and inclusivity. 
 
Proposed Events 
OS14 You Matter 9th Grade Outing 

Working with local schools, we will partner with Liberty High School to host an inaugural 9th 

grade baseball outing. This one‐day event will take place at the existing "Babe Ruth Field" on a 

select Saturday in early June of 2023. Eight area teams will be invited, selecting games 

according to each school's attendance to help maintain competitive balance. This will not be a 

tournament, but a day of head‐to‐head baseball. The overall goal will be to educate, inform and 

reduce mental health stigma. We want to educate players and attendees on the signs and 

symptoms of mental illness, inform them of what resources are available and reduce the stigma 

associated with mental illness. All of this will be done through the lens of baseball. 

OS14 14U Baseball Tourney  

Partnering with Diamond Dreams & NLCBS, the OS14 Foundation will host a 2‐day 14U USSSA 

baseball tournament. We plan to host in late‐May or early June. Much of the scheduling will be 

dependent upon Liberty High and NLCBS scheduling. The total number of teams allowed will 

greatly depend upon access to other nearby full‐size fields. The "Babe Ruth" field will be the 

primary field. The overall goal will be to educate, inform and reduce mental health stigma. We 

want to educate players and attendees on the signs and symptoms of mental illness, inform 

them of what resources are available and reduce the stigma associated with mental illness. All 

of this will be done through the lens of baseball. 

OS14 Softball Tournament 

The Foundation will attempt to partner with a proven tournament coordinator to establish a 

softball tournament at Penn Meadows. Using the "Babe Ruth" field as a hub for operations we 

will utilize the other 6‐8 fields to play games. Our timetable for this event will be later in July, 

possibly early August. The goal will be consistent with our other events; educate, inform, and 

reduce mental health stigma. We want to educate players and attendees on the signs and 

symptoms of mental illness, inform them of what resources are available and reduce the stigma 

associated with mental illness. 

 
Signage on the Field and Surrounding Area 
We feel it’s important to have signage and visual reminders around the field to share The Big O 
Foundation mission and to promote mental health awareness. The signage will be funded by 
The Big O Foundation and made by AlphaGraphics.  Some ideas include: 

 At least two large 988 Hotline Signs in the outfield 



 The Big O Foundation and I’m Glad You Stayed Project QR codes in the dugouts, near 
the stands, and if approved by the City of North Liberty – in bathroom stall, on light pole 
and any other equipment near the field. 

  
Additional Funding 
The Big O Foundation and the Skelley Family would like to offer financial assistant to fund 
future field projects and enhancements as recommended by the City of North Liberty and 
approved by our board. The city has done a great job revitalizing the Babe Ruth Baseball Field 
and we would like to offer our support to continue enhancements. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration!  We’re grateful for the support the North Liberty 
community has given the Skelley Family and The Big O Foundation. We would like to continue 
to give back to the community. 
 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Steve Stefani <steves@acmegraphicsinc.com>
Sent: Monday, October 17, 2022 2:19 PM
To: Council
Cc: jjskelley@hotmail.com; jenniferstefani70@yahoo.com
Subject: [External] The Proposal to Rename Penn Meadows to Owen Skelley Field

 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 

attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 
anyone.  

 
Dear Mayor Hoffman and the North Liberty City Council: 
 
My name is Steven Stefani, and my wife, Jennifer, and I reside at 514 Sicily Court, North Liberty, Iowa.  We love the 
community of North Liberty, and we are proud to call it home. 
 
I am writing to you today to express our enthusiastic support for the renaming of the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field to 
“Owen Skelley Field”.  Owen Skelley was my cousin, and he was a superior baseball player and student athlete.  He was 
known by his teammates as a player’s player, and he was known by his coaches to work hard every practice to improve 
as a player and as a person. 
 
Unfortunately, Owen suffered from undiagnosed mental illness which, ultimately, claimed his life before he could 
receive the help that he needed.  A foundation has been created in his memory to work to increase mental health 
awareness among children and young adults and to help them receive the help they need to live healthy active 
lives.  The Owen Skelley Foundation is seeking to have the Penn Meadows field renamed to raise awareness for this very 
important issue, and to be the site of several events each year which will further increase awareness.  The potential for 
reaching kids in this age group is great and renaming the field for Owen can make it real for persons that may feel 
isolated in their circumstances. 
 
Owen was looked up to by his friends and teammates and renaming this field in his memory has the great opportunity 
to reach and help so many more for years to come. 
 
 

Steven A. Stefani 
General Manager 
Phone: 319.364.0233 
steves@acmegraphicsinc.com 
www.RegalLine.com 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from steves@acmegraphicsinc.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Martin, Tara E <tara-martin@uiowa.edu>
Sent: Monday, October 17, 2022 10:31 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Support for the Owen Skelley Field

 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 

attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 
anyone.  

 
Dear City Council, 
I am writing in support of the renaming of the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field to the “Owen Skelley Field.”  The Skelley 
family and The Big O Foundation are an important part of the North Liberty community, and their mission is crucial for 
spreading mental health awareness in Eastern Iowa.  Given the losses of young life in this community and across the 
nation these last 3 years, this is a vital proposal to approve.  I hope that North Liberty will take this opportunity to put 
the focus on mental health. 
 
Thank you for considering this proposal. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Tara Martin 
Administrative Services Coordinator | Surgical Oncology 
Department of Surgery Faculty Development & Diversity 
Drs. Sugg, Lizarraga and Erdahl 
University of Iowa Health Care 
200 Hawkins Drive, 4645 JCP | Iowa City, IA 52242 
Phone: 319-384-9233 
  

 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from tara-martin@uiowa.edu. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Gross, Melissa A <melissa-gross@uiowa.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2022 11:31 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Support for the Big O Foundation Proposal

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 

October 19, 2022 
  
TO:  City Council – North Liberty 
  
Greetings Council Members, 
  
Being aware of your overall health is important so that you can detect any symptoms and seek professional help 
when necessary. While everyone is familiar with the symptoms and treatment options for common illnesses 
that affect their loved ones, like the flu, migraines, ear infections, strep throat or and (most recently) COVID‐19, 
many people are unsure how to look after their mental health.  Raising mental health awareness can help you 
to understand symptoms, find professional treatment, and, perhaps most importantly, break the mental health 
stigma that leaves so many people suffering in secret, especially the youth in our community.  Mental health 
awareness doesn’t just help you. Knowing more about mental health disorders can also help your family 
members, friends, and community. Three of the main reasons why mental health awareness is so important 
are…understanding symptoms, access to behavioral health resources, and breaking the mental health stigma. 
  
The plan being shared by the Big O Foundation is to utilize the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field (hopefully with 
the support of the city to be renamed the “Owen Skelley Field”) to spread awareness for mental health.  Having 
opportunities for our youth to be afforded access and information about mental health as well as resources for 
assistance may literally be the difference between life and death.  As a member of the healthcare profession 
and a mom, there cannot be enough done to ensure everyone, especially our youth, have access to information 
and resources on how they can seek out help when needed.  Continuing to talk about mental health will 
decrease the stigma associated while also having a visual reminder of the message why talking about mental 
health is so important. 
  
I fully support the proposal from the Big O Foundation that was submitted to the City of North Liberty to 
continue to have a forum for discussion, awareness, and remembrance of the impact mental health has on our 
families and our community.  If the mission and work of the Big O Foundation can help just one person and 
prevent a family from losing a loved one to mental illness, it is time and effort well spent. 
Thank you in advance for your time and in acceptance of my letter of support for the Big O Foundation 
proposal. 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from melissa-gross@uiowa.edu. Learn why this is important 



2

  

 
Melissa A. Gross MSN, RN, CNRN  
Director, Nursing Services – Ambulatory Nursing 
University of Iowa Health Care  
200 Hawkins Drive | E 407-1-A GH | Iowa City, IA 52242  
Office Phone 319-384-9896 | Voalte Me | Pager 319-356-1616 #3481 
  
Administrative Services Coordinator: Kristin Eveland | 319-353-7197 | email: kristin-eveland@uiowa.edu 
  

To help protect your privacy, 
Micro so ft Office prevented  
auto matic downlo ad o f this  
picture from the Internet.

 
  
  
  



1

Melanie Farr

From: Jensen, Jan <Jan-Jensen@hawkeyebasketball.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2022 5:48 PM
To: Council
Cc: Bluder, Lisa M; Fitzgerald, Jennifer L; jfitz44@me.com; nlstefanicfre@gmail.com
Subject: [External] Support for re-naming the Penn Field to the Owen Skelley Field

 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 

attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 
anyone.  

 
Dear North Liberty Council Members, 
We are writing to support the re‐naming of the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field to the Owen Skelley Field.  While we did 
not know Owen personally, we know members of his great family.  And, we are aware of the tremendous young man 
that Owen was.  He was a tremendous leader that faced a silent battle that few knew he was fighting.  The pressures 
that young people are facing continue to grow and their mental health is suffering in so many ways .  The desire of the 
Skelley family to help others, despite their tragic loss is heartwarming and inspiring. Their intentions of the field re‐
naming are to hopefully provide a public space where families, athletes and spectators can learn about mental health 
and talk about mental health, to hopefully give anyone facing mental health issues help and hope. This space will also 
hopefully serve as a reminder of the tremendous young man Owen was. 
Thank you for your time and consideration of this request to re‐name the field the “Owen Skelley Field”. 
 
Sincerely, 
Jan Jensen, Associate Head Coach, Iowa Women’s Basketball 
Lisa Bluder, Head Coach, Iowa Women’s Basketball 
Jenni Fitzgerald, Assistant Coach, Iowa Women’s Basketball 
Julie Fitzpatrick, Physical Therapist, Founder, Owner Optimal Wellness PLLC 
 
 

 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from jan-jensen@hawkeyebasketball.com. Learn why this is 
important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Alyssa Schramm <adschramm@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, October 14, 2022 11:58 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Renaming the Penn Meadows Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
I am resending my email as I noticed in my previous email I had some misspellings. Please use this email as the correct 
one.  
 
My husband, Brad and I, have been notified that the Big O Foundation has submitted a proposal to rename the 
Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field to Owen Skelley Field. We are sending you this letter of support because we 
strongly feel it would be an enduring and lasting testimony about the importance of mental health awareness 
that all of society needs to be reminded of. I am proud to say we are close friends of Joe and Jennifer Skelley. 
They moved to North Liberty from Burlington in 2015, when Owen was almost 9 years old. Their son, Owen 
was in the same class as our son, Cael, and both attended Liberty High School. At times, both Owen and Cael 
played on the same baseball team and so we got to know the family well. It soon became apparent how quickly 
this family became immersed in the North Liberty community. They were and are very much admired as a 
family and symbolize the “all American family” with their love and respect for our community of North Liberty 
and love for their family. Owen played baseball for the Burlington Mudd Dawgs before moving, so it was just a 
matter of time until he found a baseball club here in North Liberty. He joined Tigers Baseball 9U club. Owen 
excelled in baseball and spent many countless hours, nights, and weekends at the Penn Meadows Fields for 
tournaments, practices, in the batting cages; as well as, just on the baseball diamonds, playing pick-up games 
of baseball, the game he loved. The Skelley family, as well as their extended family, the North Liberty 
community’s, world exploded on March 2, 2022, when Owen decided to end his own life. This came out of 
absolutely nowhere, no signs, no fears of it ever ever entering this sweet boy's mind. We have learned that 
Owen was enduring a strong horrible battle with depression and anxiety all alone. He never wanted to “burden” 
his loved ones with his internal struggles. As his dad, Joe, said, “if this can happen to our family, it can happen 
to your family. Sit down and talk with your kids, ask them questions even if they seem “okay”. Make sure they 
know that there is help out there and waiting for them, if they ever find themselves face to face with similar 
struggles”. If there is any silver lining in Owen’s fateful decision, it is to carry on the message of the Big O 
Foundation, so that no other family has to endure what the Skelley family has and continues to endure. The 
Big O Foundation’s mission is to raise awareness of mental health issues and to provide support to individuals, 
wherever needed. They are committed to hosting events and incorporating signs to focus on mental health 
awareness, by inspiring messages, sending out and familiarizing the 988 hotline number for anyone who may 
be struggling with their own fears. Their goal is to have a place where youth, their families, and the community 
can come together and spread this important message, while promoting physical activity. It would be a 
prominent visual reminder of who Owen was and the importance of talking about mental illness openly, while 
trying to stop the stigma of hiding internal struggles and asking for help. We need this visual reminder to give 
strength to all those who are struggling in secret. I think with the renaming of this field to Owen Skelley Field, 
and having the Big O Foundation prioritizing and directing activities is a very wise decision for every one of us 
in the North Liberty community, as well as the surrounding communities who use this beautiful park. Thank you 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from adschramm@hotmail.com. Learn why this is important 



2

for considering this proposal, to honor our friends, Joe and Jennifer Skelley, Boyd, and Stella, and always on 
our minds, Owen.  
 
Thank you, 
Brad and Alyssa Schramm 
 
Get Outlook for iOS 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Marie Blatt <digblatt@yahoo.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2022 6:07 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Renaming the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello City Council Members: 
 
I would like to recommend that you give thoughtful consideration to the idea of renaming the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth 
field to the Owen Skelley Field. 
 
Owen was a well loved young man in the North Liberty community and across the state.  He spread happiness where 
ever he went and whomever he was with.  Unfortunately, no one realized that Owen struggled with "smiling 
depression"  and his own mental health issues.  He was an awesome baseball player.  What a powerful message it would 
send to others struggling with such issues than to rename this field after Owen and address the issue of mental illness.  It 
would be a very bold move on North Liberty's part but it would also set you apart from the rest as taking a stance on this 
very important issue. 
 
Thank you for your time. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Marie Stefani 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from digblatt@yahoo.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Team 218 <team@team218.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 13, 2022 11:34 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Renaming Penn Meadows Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council: 
 
It is my understanding that there is a proposal being considered to rename the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field to the 
Owen Skelley Field. 
 
I designed, created, and manage the website for The Big O Foundation so I have some first‐hand experience working 
with the organization. The foundation plays an important role in spreading the word about mental health issues and 
renaming the field seems like a natural fit. 
 
I support this proposal and would like to encourage the council to vote in favor of this proposal. 
 
Thank you for your time. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in message only. It is strictly forbidden to share any part of this message with any third party, 
without a written consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this message and follow with its deletion, so that we can ensure such a mistake 
does not occur in the future. 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from team@team218.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Mary Sankey <jsankey79@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2022 9:58 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Renaming Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 

I am friends with the Skelley family..Jennifer Skelley babysat our children when she was in high 
school.  She comes from a solid, religious, and loving family.  Jennifer and her husband and family are 
very close with her parents who attend their grandchilren's sporting events.  The kids and their 
grandparents cook Italian food together.  Life was perfect, picture perfect. 
 
And then the unbelievable news came that Owen Skelley committed suicide.  I was shaken to the 
core.  The pictures of the Skelley family and their grandparents were of the all American family.   
 
It was a shock to learn that Owen suffered from mental health issues.  He was vivacious and full of 
personality, a gifted athlete, a loving brother, son, and grandson. 
 
Was Owen not aware of help that could have been available to him? Was there a stigma attached to 
asking for help? For no one to be aware of his silent pain is so sad.  We need to bring mental illness 
among teens to the forefront and make it okay to seek help.  
 
Please, please rename the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field to the Owen Skelley Field.  I ask that the City 
do their part in bringing this teenage epidemic and providing an avenue for other teens to know the 
warning signs and how to seek help. 
 
Thank you for your deepest consideration. 
 
Scott and Jody Sankey 
1513 NW Pine View Circle 
Ankeny, IA 50023 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from jsankey79@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Mary Rose <Maryrose@fugaccia.com>
Sent: Saturday, October 15, 2022 11:50 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Renaming Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field

[Some people who received this message don't often get email from maryrose@fugaccia.com. Learn why this is 
important at https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ] 
 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to anyone. 
________________________________ 
 
 
I want to highly recommend and encourage you to rename the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field to the Owen Skelley 
Field. 
 
Owen suffered with mental health issues and was born a natural baseball player. Owen was a young man ahead of his 
time.  He loved life, his family, classmates, and community.  He was truly North Liberty’s favorite son.  I can’t think of a 
more powerful way  to convey the healing message of mental health than to rename the current field to the Owen 
Skelley Field.  This will make North Liberty a MUST to Iowa visitor’s stop. 
 
There is not another Baseball Field in Iowa to my knowledge dedicated to the message of Mental Illness. Thank you for 
considering the renaming of the field. 
 
With Appreciation and Anticipation, 
 
Mary Rose and Eugenio Fugaccia 
1301 SE Bel Aire Road 
Ankeny, IA 50021‐3717 
Cell: 515‐971‐4822 
 
Sent from my iPhone 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Stella Skelley <stellasskelley@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 7:18 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Renaming of Babe Ruth Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello, my name is Stella Skelley and I'm emailing to offer my full support to rename the field at Penn Meadows after 
Owen.   
 
Growing up we spent so much time at the fields it was like a home away from home. With Owen's love of baseball, it 
would be fitting for a field to be named after him. By naming it Owen Skelley Field, it would allow his story to continue 
for years to come and would continue to positively impact people. Thank you for considering. 
 
 
 
 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from stellasskelley@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Boyd Skelley <boydskelley@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 13, 2022 8:44 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Renaming of babe Ruth field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello, my name is Boyd Skelley and I’m emailing to offer my full support to rename the field at Penn meadows after 
Owen. Thank you for considering.  
 
‐Boyd Skelley 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from boydskelley@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Laci Fiene <laci.fiene@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2022 10:37 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Renaming Babe Ruth Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello, 
To whom it may concern for renaming the current Babe Ruth field. 
 
  I support the Big O Foundation in dedicating the field to our own Owen Skelley.  
 
My son plays for Liberty and would be Proud to play on Owen’s Field.  
 
YES to Owen Skelley Field. 
 
Thank you, 
Laci Fiene 
957 W Cherry St 
N. Liberty IA 52317 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from laci.fiene@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Heather May <heathermay8218@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2022 10:07 AM
To: Council
Cc: jjskelley@hotmail.com; joeskelley@hotmail.com
Subject: [External] Renaming Babe Ruth Field to Owen Skelley Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Dear Council Members:  
 
My name is Heather May and I am writing on behalf of the Skelley family and the Big O Foundation. I was lucky enough 
to know Owen for several years and my son, Tate Brunk, played with him. Owen embodied the characters that you strive 
for your child to be and their friends. He was kind, hard‐working, funny and always told you he loved you. If you look 
around North Liberty on any given day, you will likely see at least one person with an OS14 shirt on. His impact reached 
further than those who knew him.  
 
By renaming the field Owen Skelly Field, this would be an amazing show of not only support for the Skelley Family and 
the Big O Foundation, but this will bring mental health struggles front and center. This disease doesn't discriminate if 
you come from a good family or if you are athletic, it can affect anyone. By creating more awareness about who Owen 
was and what his struggles were, we may be able to save a life or get people to talk about their own mental health 
struggles.  
 
I cannot stress enough what Owen meant to my son, his teammates, family and anyone who knew him. We all miss him 
more than words. By considering renaming this field, we will keep Owen's light shining, and the issue of mental health 
front and center.  
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
Heather May 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from heathermay8218@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Amy Adam <amyadam317@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2022 12:51 PM
To: Council
Cc: Amy Adam
Subject: [External] Rename the Babe Ruth field to the Owen Skelley field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
North Liberty Council Members, 

  

I am writing to give my support to rename the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field to the Owen Skelley Field.  Just like Babe, 

Owen loved the game of baseball and Owen was a shining light in our community.  The Skelley family and their Big O 

Foundation, which promotes mental health awareness, would love to partner with the City of North Liberty and use the 

field to spread their mission.  If renaming the field is approved, the Foundation will host 2‐3 events each year for 3 years 

after which time the proposal will be re‐evaluated.  The Skelley’s goal is to have a place where youth, their families, and 

the community can come together and the Big O Foundation can spread their message, promote physical activity, and 

have a prominent visual reminder of who Owen was and why talking about mental health is so important. 

  

I hope you’ll consider renaming the Babe Ruth field to the Owen Skelley field. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Amy Adam, 19 year North Liberty resident 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from amyadam317@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Randy Stefani <randystefani5@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2022 7:13 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Proposal to Rename Penn Meadows Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Dear Mayor and Council Members, 
 
Please allow me to introduce myself. My name is Randy Stefani. I have lived in Iowa my entire life. Through Jennifer 
Skelley, my cousin, I have become aware of a proposal to rename the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field in North Liberty 
the “Owen Skelley Field.”  For the reasons below, I wish to enthusiastically state my support for this outstanding idea.  
 
As I am sure all of you know, Owen was a model student, athlete, and all‐around person. He was liked by all who had the 
good fortune to know him. Owen’s personal qualities alone would make naming something in his memory appropriate. 
Beyond Owen’s outstanding personal qualities, however, and what no one knew was that prior to his untimely death, 
Owen was courageously fighting an internal battle that is all too common among young people nowadays. That battle is 
the battle against mental illness and depression. We as a society must do all we can to increase awareness of this 
debilitating and potentially deadly illness so that more individuals will be encouraged to seek help and treatment before 
it is too late.  
 
It is my understanding if the field is renamed, the Foundation created in Owen’s memory will host two to three events 
each year at the field. Those events will include extensive publicity about mental health awareness as well as 
information about where persons in need of help can call for assistance. If even one life is saved because of this 
publicity, renaming the field will have absolutely been worth it.  
 
Finally, although I don’t know any of you personally, I suspect each of you at least to some degree sought to serve on the 
council hoping to make North Liberty a better community. I have no doubt renaming the Penn Meadows field the 
“Owen Skelley Field” is consistent with that goal.  
 
I hope you will give the proposal to rename the Penn Meadows Field favorable consideration.  
 
Thank you.  
 
Randy Stefani  
 
 
 
 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from randystefani5@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Randy Stefani <randystefani5@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2022 7:13 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Proposal to Rename Penn Meadows Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Dear Mayor and Council Members, 
 
Please allow me to introduce myself. My name is Randy Stefani. I have lived in Iowa my entire life. Through Jennifer 
Skelley, my cousin, I have become aware of a proposal to rename the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field in North Liberty 
the “Owen Skelley Field.”  For the reasons below, I wish to enthusiastically state my support for this outstanding idea.  
 
As I am sure all of you know, Owen was a model student, athlete, and all‐around person. He was liked by all who had the 
good fortune to know him. Owen’s personal qualities alone would make naming something in his memory appropriate. 
Beyond Owen’s outstanding personal qualities, however, and what no one knew was that prior to his untimely death, 
Owen was courageously fighting an internal battle that is all too common among young people nowadays. That battle is 
the battle against mental illness and depression. We as a society must do all we can to increase awareness of this 
debilitating and potentially deadly illness so that more individuals will be encouraged to seek help and treatment before 
it is too late.  
 
It is my understanding if the field is renamed, the Foundation created in Owen’s memory will host two to three events 
each year at the field. Those events will include extensive publicity about mental health awareness as well as 
information about where persons in need of help can call for assistance. If even one life is saved because of this 
publicity, renaming the field will have absolutely been worth it.  
 
Finally, although I don’t know any of you personally, I suspect each of you at least to some degree sought to serve on the 
council hoping to make North Liberty a better community. I have no doubt renaming the Penn Meadows field the 
“Owen Skelley Field” is consistent with that goal.  
 
I hope you will give the proposal to rename the Penn Meadows Field favorable consideration.  
 
Thank you.  
 
Randy Stefani  
 
 
 
 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from randystefani5@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Angela Fontana <afx5@comcast.net>
Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2022 3:50 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Proposal for Renaming Field

[Some people who received this message don't often get email from afx5@comcast.net. Learn why this is important at 
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ] 
 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to anyone. 
________________________________ 
 
 
I highly recommend and encourage you to rename the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field to the Owen Skelley Field. Owen 
was a natural baseball player who suffered in silence with mental health issues. Owen was full of life—he loved his 
family, friends, classmates and community. It would be a very powerful for North Liberty to convey the healing message 
of mental health by renaming the current field to Owen Skelley Field. Mental health awareness is more important than 
ever, and the name change will help further awareness. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Angela Fontana 
1280 Wild Rose Lane 
Lake Forest, IL  60045 
Cell: (847) 815‐4446 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Sally Holmberg <SallyHolmberg@msn.com>
Sent: Saturday, October 15, 2022 1:43 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Penn Meadows field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 

Owen Skelley's spirit must live on. Owen was a young man with a huge heart filled with love and kindness. I 
can think of no better way to share his love of baseball and the joy of the game than renaming the Penn 
Meadows field in his name.  
 
The strength the Skelley family has shown during this difficult loss exemplifies their belief that the mental 
health message must be shared.  I trust you will consider this request in your deliberations. 
 
Sally Holmberg 
5020 Cleburne Court 
Pleasant Hill, IA  50327   

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from sallyholmberg@msn.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Paula Weigel <Paula_Weigel@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, October 17, 2022 7:30 PM
To: Council
Cc: Ronald Weigel
Subject: [External] Penn Meadows Field Renaming

[Some people who received this message don't often get email from paula_weigel@yahoo.com. Learn why this is 
important at https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ] 
 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to anyone. 
________________________________ 
 
 
Dear Council members, 
 
We are writing in support of renaming the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field to the Owen Skelley Field. Owen exemplified 
the best qualities that youth sports develop in young people, and he made a huge impact in baseball over his life. It 
would be a wonderful tribute to a local son who grew up playing on those fields, and who was beloved by everyone that 
knew him in the community. 
 
The renaming would also serve as a vehicle to raise awareness of mental health, as well as the resources and support 
that are available within the community. Furthermore, The Big O Foundation would be a strong and impactful partner to 
the City of North Liberty in providing this important awareness of mental health on a continual basis. Their commitment 
to hosting events and tournaments would be an effective form of outreach to young athletes, their families, and 
everyone else that uses Penn Meadows. 
 
Thank you for considering this proposal to honor Owen Skelley. 
 
Paula and Ron Weigel 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Reid Manternach <remanternach@crprairie.org>
Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2022 9:05 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Reid Manternach, Solon Iowa 

Baseball, a sport that is loved by millions of people around the world. Often on social media seeing the 
interactions players have with fans can spread happiness around the world, right? What makes me happy 
about the sport is seeing the relationships between the players when they are doing the thing they love. I say 
this because baseball is what brought Owen Skelley and me together, the sport that we both love. Owen and I 
grew up playing each other on the diamonds, and although his team was better than mine, I would still hope 
that he was in the same tournament as me and hoping to get the revenge of winning a game against him. The 
time we had just through a game that had a ball, bat, and gloves built a relationship. Would you ever think that 
those three simple things could bring two people together? Well, it can and it did. With all my heart, I hope this 
field can do the same for the community and kids that play on this field, just like a field brought Owen and me 
together. To have something like this in the city of North Liberty would be great for the community. People 
know and have felt the impact Owen had on this community and this field will be something that continues to 
spread a positive impact through the sport he loved. I see this field as an opportunity to build relationships and 
bring people together not just around a sport, but around Mental Health and Owen.  
Thank you,  
Reid Manternach 
319‐310‐5837 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from remanternach@crprairie.org. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Martha Komma <martha.komma2018@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2022 4:19 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
I am sending you this email to express my support to rename the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field in North Liberty to the 
Owen Skelley Field.  
 
Owen was a stellar North Liberty Citizen whose life was taken much too early by the horrible disease of mental health.  I 
can’t think of a stronger way to convey to our youth the seriousness of mental health.  We all know that this disease is 
taking the lives of many of our youth today.  To have a Baseball Field that represents a message that needs to be heard 
loud and clear would be a jewel  in North Liberty. 
 
 Thank you for performing your civic duty by voting to rename  the current field to the Owen Skelley Field. 
 
With Sincere Appreciation, 
Martha Komma 
2729 82nd Place, Apt. 235 
Urbandale, Iowa 50322 
515‐491‐6770 
 
. 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from martha.komma2018@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Denise Brotherton <dabrotherton@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2022 8:19 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field

[Some people who received this message don't often get email from dabrotherton@hotmail.com. Learn why this is 
important at https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ] 
 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to anyone. 
________________________________ 
 
 
North Liberty City Council, 
 
I am writing in support of renaming the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field to the Owen Skelley Field. I support the mission 
of the Big O Foundation and the work the Skelley family has done to raise mental health awareness. The Owen Skelley 
Field will serve as a gathering place to support area youth and their families through physical activities and positive 
messaging so those experiencing mental crisis will know they are not alone and there is help and hope. The families who 
have lost loved ones to mental illness will know that their community supports them and they are not alone. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. I truly believe this will have a positive impact on the North Liberty community and 
those from outside who visit the field. 
 
Denise Brotherton 
North Liberty 
 
 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Kelly Augustine <augustine9227@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2022 11:51 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Baseball Field Renaming

 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 

attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 
anyone.  

 
Dear North Liberty City Council, 
  
Our family has been close friends with the Skelley family for the past 15 years.  Our oldest son is the same age 
as Boyd, and Owen was the same age as our daughter.   Both sets of kids began playing soccer and t-ball 
together in Burlington Iowa when they were 3 years old and then began kindergarten together.  Although, the 
Skelley family moved to North Liberty Iowa in 2015, our families continue to be very close.   
 
Collectively, the Skelley family has always been very involved in their community. Each one of them are loyal 
and dedicated to whatever they are taking part in.  Joe and Jennifer have always volunteered for PTO 
activities, worked concessions during sporting events, helped out with their church’s youth activities, and the 
list goes on. Through all of the years I have known them, whenever they have known about a need, they have 
given generously of their time and resources. 
 
On March 3, 2022, Owen Skelley tragically ended his life after a two-year battle with mental illness.  Owen 
fought silently, never wanting to burden his family and friends with his struggles.  Owen’s death devastated so 
many, and I have been amazed at how this heartbreak has brought the North Liberty community together. 
Friends, family, and The Big O Foundation have made it their mission to keep Owen’s memory alive and to 
support and educate others about mental health. 
  
I am the treasurer of The Big O Foundation and I support the proposal that the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth 
Baseball Field be renamed to the “Owen Skelley Field”.  The Big O Foundation would like to partner with the 
City of North Liberty and local businesses, to revitalize and maintain the field.  There may be concern that our 
passion for this project could fizzle out over time.  As I mentioned before, Joe and Jennifer have a passion for 
philanthropy, and I can think of no better way for them to continue their benevolence than to pay tribute to their 
son in such a special way.  I know their dedication to this field will not diminish. 
 
Owen’s love of baseball was undeniable, and we want to honor his life, and love for bringing people 
together.  The Owen Skelley Field would give older youth and high school teams a venue to practice, play and 
host tournaments.  The city currently doesn’t have another 13/14U field, besides Liberty High School where 
scheduling is limited.  Most important, this field would allow The Big O Foundation to spread the word about 
mental health awareness by supporting physical activity, displaying mental health resources at and around the 
field, hosting mental health awareness events, and creating a sense of belonging and inclusivity. 
  
The Big O Foundation and the Skelley Family would like to offer financial assistance to revitalize the field 
dugouts and will also fund future projects as recommended by our board.  
 
Thank you for your consideration and please let us know if you need additional information. 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from augustine9227@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



2

Sincerely, 
Kelly Augustine, The Big O Foundation Treasurer 
319-310-1201 
 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Laura <leonardla@mchsi.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2022 8:32 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Penn Meadows Babe Ruth baseball field renaming 

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
  
  
  

Dear North Liberty Council Members, 
  
I am would like to ask you to consider the renaming of the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth 
Field to the Owen Skelley Field. 

  
Owen was a huge baseball fan and I can’t think of a better way to impact the North 
Liberty youth as well as get the message out about mental illness.  
  
Thanking you for your consideration in supporting the renaming of the Penn Meadows 
Babe Ruth field to the Owen Skelley Field. 

   Sincerely,   

      Laura Leonard 

  Sent from my iPad 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from leonardla@mchsi.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Carly Walrod <carly.walrod@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 13, 2022 12:02 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Owen Skelly Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Good Afternoon,   
I am sending this message in support of the Big O foundation to have the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field be renamed 
the "Owen Skelly Field"   
 
With the increased awareness needed surrounding mental health, along with the platform the Big O Foundation has, I 
cannot see a better example of how to support their mission while taking stigma away from mental health.  
 
Thank you 
Carly Walrod 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from carly.walrod@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Danielle Kopecky <danik0706@hotmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 11:29 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Owen Skelley Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
I'm writing in support of the renaming of Babe Ruth field to the Owen Skelley field. Mental health awareness, education 
and help is critical for the children of our community. Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely,  
Danielle Kopecky  
319‐558‐7277  
danik0706@hotmail.com 
  
 
Sent from my U.S.Cellular© Smartphone 
Get Outlook for Android 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from danik0706@hotmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Bridgette Cochran <bccochran@hotmail.com>
Sent: Saturday, October 15, 2022 12:02 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Owen Skelley Field 

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
The Cochran family is in support of naming the Babe Ruth Field in memory of Owen Skelley. The mission of the 
Owen Skelley Foundation is something we support, they have already made a positive impact on our community 
and we know they will continue this in the future. 
 
Our family is connected to the Skelley family through baseball and dance, this would be a very great way to honor 
Owen.  
 
 
Please strongly considered making this name change, help to spread their message.  
 
Thank you,  
Bridgette Cochran  

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from bccochran@hotmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Rennie Ludens <rennieludens@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, October 14, 2022 12:28 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Owen Skelley Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello,  
Please consider changing the name of Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field to honor Owen Skelley and be changed to the 
Owen Skelley Field to help support the foundation and mental health awareness. 
Thanks, 
Rae Ludens 
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from rennieludens@hotmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Rennie Ludens <rennieludens@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, October 14, 2022 12:28 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Owen Skelley Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello,  
Please consider changing the name of Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field to honor Owen Skelley and be changed to the 
Owen Skelley Field to help support the foundation and mental health awareness. 
Thanks, 
Rae Ludens 
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from rennieludens@hotmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Tim Sturgell <sturgell.tim@iowacityschools.org>
Sent: Friday, October 14, 2022 4:26 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Owen Skelley Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello, 
 
I am writing to you in support of naming the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth baseball field the "Owen Skelley Field". 
Owen was and still is an inspiration to many people. He loved baseball but more importantly, he loved helping 
people. By naming the field after him, it would allow his story to continue to positively impact people near and 
far for years to come. 
 
Thank you, 
 
‐‐  
Tim Sturgell  
School Counselor 
Assistant Wrestling Coach 
North Central Jr. High 
Assistant Football Coach 
West High School 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from sturgell.tim@iowacityschools.org. Learn why this is important



1

Melanie Farr

From: Patricia Thomas <patricia.m.thomas@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2022 9:40 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Owen Skelley Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Council members,  
 
I would like to throw my vote in to rename Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field to Owen Skelley Field.  Owen was an amazing 
and talented young man that left us far too soon.  He comes from an amazing family that would like to help prevent such 
a tragedy for other families by bringing awareness of mental health. 
 
I thank you for this consideration and pray this vote passes. 
 
Patricia Thomas 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from patricia.m.thomas@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Barbara Kounkel <jbkounkel@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2022 10:50 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Owen Skelley Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Like most people in the North Liberty area,we adore the Skelley family.  We are connected with the Skelley family 
through dance.  Jen and Joe are the most generous people and constantly giving back to the community.  Owen's death 
has been so heartbreaking and something no parent should ever have to go through.  Through the heartbreak, the 
Skelley family has continued to give back to the community to make it a better place.  The Big O Foundation is taking 
their pain and preventing future suicides.  This is essential for everyone and applies to all ages.  Mental health is 
something we have to face head on and make it OK to talk about.  The Owen Skelley Field would be the perfect way to 
honor Owen's memory, his love for baseball, and the importance of mental health.  Part of an awesome community is 
supporting one another.  The Owen Skelley Field would show our love and commitment to our growing community and 
the members in it.  
 
Sincerely, 
Barb and Jon Kounkel 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from jbkounkel@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Stephen Orr <sorrdm@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2022 10:41 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Naming support

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
I write in support of naming the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field  in remembrance of Owen Skelley.  As was mentioned so 
often at his funeral service, by teachers, staff, coaches, and peers, he was a real leader.  Many young people sought him 
out for advice and support.  Little did anyone know the silent disease that was troubling him.  And yet, he continued to 
be there for others.  
Owen was not only a skilled athlete but also a strong student.  He worked hard at everything he did.  That is what he will 
be remembered for and why naming the field in his honor would be appropriate. Opportunities for drawing awareness 
to this silent disease could be very helpful to others who are suffering and give them hope.  
 
Rev. Stephen L. Orr 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from sorrdm@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Lydia Fine <lydiafine3@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 11:49 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Letter of Support: Penn Meadows ball field renaming

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
To Whom it May Concern,   
 
I'd like to express my support for the renaming of the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth field as the Owen Skelley Field.  
 
Our country is in the midst of a mental health crisis, particularly for young people, and the stigma is strong among our 
male athletes. The Big O Foundation's mission is so important at this moment in our country's history, and the renaming 
of the field will help to keep this cause top of mind for North Liberty athletes and those who visit our field. Visitors and 
athletes will be able to learn about Owen, the impact he made during his short life, and the lessons we can learn from 
his death. They'll be educated about ways to ask for help (988 hotline), ways to combat mental illness, and get support 
that could be the difference between choosing to stay and cutting their life short.  
 
I am wholeheartedly supportive of the renaming of the ball field in honor of Owen. Owen's family are brave stewards of 
the message about mental illness for athletes, and this important mission is in great hands under their care.  
 
Please feel free to reach out if I can be of further assistance.  
 
Sincerely, 
Lydia Fine 
 
 
1519 Red Oak Dr. 
North Liberty, IA 52317 
319‐331‐8510 
 
  
 
 
‐‐  

Lydia Fine 
lydiafine3@gmail.com 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Troy Bergmann <bergmann.troy@iowacityschools.org>
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 9:05 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Letter of Support
Attachments: Big O Foundation Letter of Support.pdf

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 

North Liberty City Council, 
 
Please see my attached letter of support on behalf of the Big O Foundation in naming a baseball field 
at Penn Meadows Park, "Owen Skelley Field". 
 
Thanks, 
 

Troy Bergmann  
School Counselor 
Liberty High School 
Ph: 319-688-1354 
Fax:  319-688-1358 
https://troybergmann.youcanbook.me/ 
 

To help protect your privacy, 
Micro so ft Office prevented  
auto matic downlo ad o f this  
picture from the Internet.
tter

@BoltCounseling 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from bergmann.troy@iowacityschools.org. Learn why this is 
important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Heather Woody <coachheather10@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 8:27 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Letter of support for the Owen Skelley Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Dear City of North Liberty ‐ City Council,  
 
I am writing in fullest support of the Big O Foundation, the Skelley Family and Owen Eugene Skelley.  It is my mission to 
support the renaming of the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field to become Owen Skelley Field.  Owen Skelley represented 
EVERYTHING that is remarkable and of the example of great character in a young man, friend, teammate, brother and 
son.  Renaming this baseball field would allow children and teens, families and community members to remember and 
learn from a very special young man who represented everything that is good in a person.  This would provide another 
reminder of how important it is to not only be a good human, but to be aware of our friends, family and anyone who 
may be silently struggling.  Owen's bright light not only shined in his life but also in his passing and we should all find 
every single way possible to keep his beautiful light shining over all of us.  Naming this field after Owen is another way 
that we can all share in doing just that.  Please genuinely consider making this amazing change for our community and 
the thousands of people that will sit on the benches, play on the field and enjoy this awesome space for years to come.  
 

Sincerely and with support for Big O #14ᖭᖮᖯ forever, 
 
Heather L. Woody, MCC,Heather Woody Unlimited, Inc. 
Professional Coaching, Consulting & Speaking 
www.heatherwoody.com 
319-404-4984 
Positivity/Maximizer/Achiever/Strategic/Activator 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from coachheather10@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Megan Snyder <mfickel@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, October 17, 2022 3:56 PM
To: Council
Cc: Joe and Jenny Skelley
Subject: [External] Letter of Support

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello,  
 
My name is Megan Snyder and I am the owner of Debut Dance, located here in North Liberty.   
 
It has been brought to my attention that Penn Meadows is undergoing major renovations with a proposal to rename the 
baseball field to "Owen Skelley Field".  As a supporter of the Big O Foundation and Skelley family, I write to you today to 
advocate for the renaming of the field. 
 
This foundation, along with Skelley family, has touched my heart in so many ways this past year and I know this name 
change would have a lasting, positive impact on the youth that use the fields (including my three boys that play baseball) 
along with the community as a whole.  
 
I would be thrilled to see the foundation partner with the City of North Liberty on this project! 
 
Thank you, 
Megan Snyder 
Owner, Debut Dance 
 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from mfickel@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Megan Snyder <mfickel@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, October 17, 2022 3:56 PM
To: Council
Cc: Joe and Jenny Skelley
Subject: [External] Letter of Support

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello,  
 
My name is Megan Snyder and I am the owner of Debut Dance, located here in North Liberty.   
 
It has been brought to my attention that Penn Meadows is undergoing major renovations with a proposal to rename the 
baseball field to "Owen Skelley Field".  As a supporter of the Big O Foundation and Skelley family, I write to you today to 
advocate for the renaming of the field. 
 
This foundation, along with Skelley family, has touched my heart in so many ways this past year and I know this name 
change would have a lasting, positive impact on the youth that use the fields (including my three boys that play baseball) 
along with the community as a whole.  
 
I would be thrilled to see the foundation partner with the City of North Liberty on this project! 
 
Thank you, 
Megan Snyder 
Owner, Debut Dance 
 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from mfickel@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Lisa Smith <lisafugacciasmith@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 13, 2022 2:41 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] In support of renaming Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
To the leaders of North Liberty:  
 
I am writing in support of renaming Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field to The Owen Skelley Field. 
 
Owen was my nephew; his mom is my sister. It is an understatement to say that the unexpected loss of Owen on March 
3, 2022 was a tragedy for our family. None of us will ever be the same,and our family and the community of North 
Liberty will not be the same without Owen's wit, humor, love and care.  
 
The renaming of the baseball field to Owen Skelley Field and partnership with the Big O Foundation would be an 
amazing gift for our family and for the community. It would keep mental health awareness in the forefront and allow the 
foundation to cast a wide net as the foundation strives to reach far and wide to raise awareness for mental health and 
suicide prevention.  I cannot think of a better cause.  
 
No one should ever have to go through what Joe, Jennifer, Boyd, Stella and the rest of our family has endured. No one. It 
is the absolute worst nightmare for any family. Anything that can be done to promote mental health awareness and 
provide resources for those struggling should be done. Renaming the field would support this cause and also provide a 
meaningful tribute to Owen for his grieving family.  
 
Thank you for considering. 
 
#OS14 
 
Lisa Smith 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from lisafugacciasmith@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Nancy Stefani <nlstefanicfre@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, October 14, 2022 8:04 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Fwd: Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
 

Nancy L. Stefani  
The Arbordale 
2729 82nd Place, Unit 230 
Urbandale, Iowa 50322‐4303 
Phone: (515) 240‐4290 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Nancy L. Stefani" <nlstefanicfre@gmail.com> 
Date: October 14, 2022 at 11:33:32 AM CDT 
To: Council@northlibertyiowa.0rg 
Subject: Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field 

  
Dear North Liberty Council Members, 
  
I am writing to encourage you to positively consider the renaming of the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field 
to the Owen Skelley Field. 
  
What a better way to impact the North Liberty youth of today and tomorrow that to be supported by 
the legacy of Owen Skelley.  Owen loved Baseball and he loved North Liberty. 
  
Thanking you in advance for supporting the renaming of the above field to the Owen Skelley Field. 
  
Gratefully, ,  
Nancy L. Stefani 
  
  
Nancy L. Stefani 
The Arbordale 
2729 82nd Place, Unit 230 
Urbandale, Iowa 50322‐4303 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from nlstefanicfre@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



2

Phone: (515) 240‐4290 
  
  



1

Melanie Farr

From: Zachary Hammes <hammes.zachary@iowacityschools.org>
Sent: Friday, October 14, 2022 2:48 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Fwd: Owen Skelley Foundation opportunity to partner with Penn Meadows

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
To whom it may concern, 
 
Good afternoon, my name is Zach Hammes and I teach business education at Liberty High School here in North 
Liberty, this is my 5th year in the profession after a 12 year professional baseball career which is another reason why I'm 
writing this email.  My goal when entering into this field was to help make a difference in the lives of young kids.  It has 
been brought to my attention that there is an opportunity for Penn Meadows to serve as resource for young kids and 
current mental health issues in society today via a partnership with the Owen Skelley Foundation.  Bringing awareness to 
the young kids at Penn Meadows would be an awesome opportunity for the kids of the community. When Owen took 
his own life last February, it caused me to look deeper into the issue of suicide with young people, quite honestly I did 
not realize this was an epidemic that was taking students from each of our high schools within the ICCSD yearly.  I found 
that suicide rates spiked 56% for 10‐24 year olds from 2007‐2017, unfortunately that gap is continuing to widen each 
year.   
 
I understand this is a topic that is tough to advocate for publicly for some, but let me tell you this is what our young 
people need.  They need the awareness, they need the resources, they need this partnership between you all and the 
Owen Skelley Foundation.  What Joe and Jennifer, and the foundation are doing to advocate and bring awareness to this 
data is not an easy thing, but is so necessary for all of us to understand this epidemic.  This is something that we 
mention to students all the time now, giving them resources as we cannot tell who is dealing with these mental health 
issues.  Owen was an unbelievable kid, one of the smartest in the room.  He was kind, always asking everyone else how 
they were doing.  He was also hiding issues from covid isolation, and who knows what else, and because of that we lost 
a 15 year old way to early.  Again, this is not few and far between, the data I have below will give you all more insight to 
this issue that we are dealing with in society today.  With your help, we can bring awareness to young kids who have 
their whole lives ahead of them.  What happened in February of this year was an educator's worst nightmare.  I 
empathise, and cannot imagine dealing with this as a parent like the Skelley's have had to.  Please consider collaborating 
and partnering with their family, who is advocating so hard for the mental health of young people.   Thank you for your 
time and consideration! 
 
https://www.businessinsider.com/cdc‐teenage‐gen‐z‐american‐suicide‐epidemic 
https://www.usnews.com/news/health‐news/articles/2022‐09‐30/suicides‐in‐the‐u‐s‐climbed‐in‐2021‐cdc‐data‐shows 
https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/why‐is‐gen‐z‐depressed#stigmas 
 
 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from hammes.zachary@iowacityschools.org. Learn why this is 
important 



2

Zach 
‐‐  

     

ZACH HAMMES 

BUSINESS EDUCATION 

LIBERTY HIGH SCHOOL 

hammes.zachary@iowacityschools.org 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

  

 

  

 
 
 
‐‐  

     

 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Lillian Erdahl <lilerdahl@hotmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2022 7:20 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] For Council Meeting 10/25/22

 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 

attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 
anyone.  

 
Dear Council Members, 
 
As a long time resident of Johnson County, I am writing this letter in support of the Big O Foundation’s proposal to 
rename the Penn Meadows Field the Owen Skelley Field. I have known Jennifer Skelley and her family for several years. I 
first met her when she started working with me in the Breast Clinic at UIHC where she has shown expertise and 
compassion in the care of patients with breast diseases. I have witnessed the pain and grief the Skelley family suffered 
after losing Owen to Mental Illness this year. I have also witnessed the outpouring of love for Owen from his family and 
friends. A love that could no longer be given directly to Owen and instead has blessed our entire community reminding 
us of the importance of listening to and caring for one another. 
 
My son I have discussed suicide and mental health in the wake of Owen’s death because the Skelleys have been so 
willing to share their pain and love with us. My son reports to me each time he sees Jennifer driving her car with the 
license plate Big O Mom. And I hope that open conversation means that he will come to me if he or his friends ever 
struggle with mental health issues or thoughts of suicide. 
 
I am so grateful that the Big O Foundation wants to bring their love for their son and community to the City of North 
Liberty promoting mental health awareness. Thank you for considering this proposal. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Lillian Erdahl 
lilerdahl@hotmail.com 
(717)512‐9143 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 
 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from lilerdahl@hotmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Becky Chicoine <beckychicoine1@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2022 7:43 PM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Baseball Field

 

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to 

anyone.  

 
Hello,  
We would love for you to consider renaming the Penn Meadows Babe Ruth Field to the Owen Skelley Field.  
 
Owen was a wonderful young man who loved baseball, his family, and his town.  He unfortunately struggled with mental 
health issues like so many young people do.  
 
We believe renaming the field would be a great way to honor Owen, and to bring awareness to this very important 
cause. This name change could have a long lasting legacy where so many youth could learn more about mental health 
issues.  
 
Thank you for considering this change, I know his family and friends appreciate your time and consideration.  
 
Chad and Becky Chicoine 
6997 NE 11th Ct 
Ankeny, IA 50023 

  Some people who received this message don't often get email from beckychicoine1@gmail.com. Learn why this is important 



1

Melanie Farr

From: Chris Avgenackis <avy_1545@yahoo.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 12:39 AM
To: Council
Subject: [External] Babe Ruth Field Renaming  

[Some people who received this message don't often get email from avy_1545@yahoo.com. Learn why this is important 
at https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ] 
 
WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
know the contents are safe. Never provide your user ID or password to anyone. 
________________________________ 
 
 
NL City Council 
 
I am in favor of renaming the Babe Ruth fiend to The Owen Skelley Field.  Not only would this honor Owen, but would 
have a great impact on our local youth that may be struggling with mental health issues. 
 
In addition, both of my kids attend Liberty and play sports and knew Owen personally.  My son plays baseball for Liberty 
and played on this field all summer. 
 
Thanks for your consideration. 
 
Chris Avgenackis 
285 Autumn Court 
North Liberty 
 
 
 



 

Consent Agenda 
 
    



 

City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 1 

City Council 
October 11, 2022 

Work & Regular Sessions 
 
Call to order   
Mayor Chris Hoffman called the October 11, 2022, Work and Regular Sessions of the North Liberty 
City Council to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 1 Quail Creek Circle.  Councilors 
present: Ashley Bermel, RaQuishia Harrington, Erek Sittig, Brent Smith and Brian Wayson.   
 
Others present: Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Grant Lientz, Ryan Rusnak, Kevin Trom, Ellen 
McCabe, Micah Ariel James, Richard Grugin, Rita Roberts, Matthew Staber, Noah Egge, Avery Van 
Abbema, Chase Lovetinsky, Konstantin Titarenko, Leela Strand, Megan Quinn, Piper Kearney, 
Ruby Frank, Andi Cetta, Asher Bonner, Hadley Andersen, Madison Jurgens, Olivia Roling and other 
interested parties.  
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Harrington moved; Sittig seconded to approve the agenda. The vote was all ayes. Agenda 
approved.    
 
Work Session 
Heiar introduced the topic. Ellen McCabe, Housing Trust Fund Johnson County Executive 
Director, presented information on potential ARPA projects. Council discussed the presentation 
with McCabe.  
 
Council recessed at 6:33 p.m.  and reconvened at 6:34 p.m. The Regular Session began at 6:34 
p.m.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Smith moved, Bermel seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including the City Council 
Minutes from the Regular Session on September 27, 2022; the attached list of claims, North Jones 
Boulevard Improvements Project, Pay Application Number 5, Schrader Excavating and Grading, 
$754,632.87; Community Center Roof Project, Pay Application Number 2, T&K Roofing Co., 
$90,772.50. The vote was all ayes. Consent Agenda approved.   
 
Public Comment 
No public comment was offered.  
 
City Engineer Report 
City Engineer Trom reported that the contractor for the Ranshaw Way Project is using the cones 
for keeping workers safe while they water.  The Dubuque Street Phase 1 Project is moving to the 
next section late this week or early next week. This will open Penn Meadows Park parking lot. 
Heritage Drive Streambank Erosion Control Project will receive quotes in November with the work 



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 2 

happening during the winter and seeding in the spring.   The City Hall Project will begin soon with 
an April 2024 final completion.  The Jones Boulevard contractor is getting close to substantial 
completion and expects to open it to traffic in November.  The contractor is ahead of schedule on 
the Community Center Roof Project.  Currently, the contractor is waiting on edge metal.  Council 
discussed the report with Trom.  
 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Heiar reported on calendar reminders. The public meeting with Harvest Estates 
neighborhood will be held October 17 at 5:30 p.m. at the Fire Station regarding the new fire station. 
At the 10/25 Council meeting, there will be a 6:00 p.m. work session for the Big O Foundation 
presentation.  The November 8 City Council meeting will be moved to Monday, November 7 due 
to the election polling place being Council Chambers.   
 
Mayor Report 
Mayor Hoffman reported that he Attended Iowa League of Cities conference. He reported that 
next month the MPOJC meeting here in council chambers on November 16 at 4:30 p.m. Mayor 
Hoffman made the Hall of Fame presentations to Rita Roberts and Richard Grugin.  
 
Council Reports 
Councilor Smith attended a roundtable regarding EMS mobile simulator training and will attend 
another in November.  Councilor Wayson helped with Scouting for Food the last two weekends. 
He complimented the donors that donated ingredients for a complete meal.   Council Sittig 
represented the city at the opening of the Story Walk. He attended the ILOC Conference and the 
Affordable Housing Coalition annual meeting.  Councilor Bermel attended the ILOC Conference.  
 
Youth Council 
Micah Ariel James presented the Youth Council program and introduced the representatives.  
Mayor Hoffman swore in the Youth Council for 2022-23.   
 
Kwik Star Site Plan 
Rusnak reported that staff & Commission recommend approval with no conditions.  No applicant 
was present.  Harrington moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-104, A 
Resolution approving the Preliminary Site Plan for Lot 1, The Evermore Part Two, North Liberty, 
Iowa.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Bermel, Smith, Sittig, Wayson, Harrington; nays – none. 
Motion carried.   
 
A to Z Site Plan 
Rusnak reported that staff & Commission recommend approval with no conditions.  No applicant 
was present.  Smith moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-105, A 
Resolution approving the Preliminary Site Plan for 625 240th Street, North Liberty, Iowa. After 
discussion, the vote was: ayes – Harrington, Smith, Sittig, Wayson, Bermel; nays – none. Motion 
carried.   

  
Heritage Drive Stormwater Project 



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 3 

Wayson moved, Harrington seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-106, A Resolution 
approving the Temporary Construction Easement Agreement between Clothilde B. Stewart and 
the City of North Liberty.  The vote was: ayes – Wayson, Smith, Harrington, Bermel, Sittig; nays – 
none. Motion carried.   
Harrington moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-107, A Resolution 
approving the Temporary Construction Easement Agreement between Jennifer Malatek and the 
City of North Liberty. The vote was: ayes – Sittig, Wayson, Smith, Bermel, Harrington; nays – none. 
Motion carried.  
Bermel moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-108, A Resolution approving 
the Temporary Construction Easement Agreement between Andrew J. Gilpin and Sarah E. Gilpin 
and the City of North Liberty. The vote was: ayes – Bermel, Sittig, Smith, Wayson, Harrington; nays 
– none. Motion carried.   

 
Owner Occupied Rehab Project 
Sittig moved, Bermel seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-109, A Resolution approving 
the rehabilitation contracts and associated documents between owners, rehabilitation contractors 
and the City of North Liberty. After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Sittig, Wayson, Smith, 
Harrington, Bermel; nays – none. Motion carried.     

 
North Liberty Centennial Park – Next Stage 
Wayson moved, Bermel seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-110, A Resolution 
approving the Designated Fund Agreement for the North Liberty Centennial Park: Next Stage 
Project between the Community Foundation of Johnson County and the City of North Liberty. 
After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Sittig, Harrington, Smith, Wayson, Bermel; nays – none. 
Motion carried.    

 
Site Plan Ordinance Amendment 
At 7:17 p.m., Mayor Hoffman opened the Public Hearing regarding proposed ordinance 
amendment. No oral or written comments were received.  The public hearing was closed at 7:17 
p.m.  Rusnak presented information on the amendment and reported that staff and the Planning 
Commission recommend approval.  Council discussed the proposed amendment. Wayson moved, 
Bermel seconded to waive the requirement for consideration at two meetings prior to final action.  
The vote was: ayes – Bermel, Smith, Sittig, Harrington, Wayson; nays – none. Motion carried. 
Wayson moved, Harrington seconded to approve the first (and final) consideration of Ordinance 
Number 2022-22, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 165 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances 
(Zoning Code-Administrative) by adding Section 165.10, entitled, “Moratorium,” to establish a six 
and a half month moratorium on submittal and review of Preliminary Site Plan applications for 
which the current Zoning District designation or use is incompatible or inconsistent with the North 
Liberty Comprehensive Plan 2014 Land Use Map and the Proposed Future Land Use Map. The 
vote was: ayes – Smith, Bermel, Sittig, Wayson, Harrington; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Old Business 
No old business was presented.   
 



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 4 

New Business 
No new business was presented.  
 
Adjournment 
Harrington moved, Smith seconded to adjourn at 7:29 p.m. The vote was all ayes. Meeting adjourned.  
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
By:  __________________________ 

Chris Hoffman, Mayor  
Attest: ________________________ 

Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 
 

 



Page 1 of 2

Applicant

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY

Fiesta North Liberty Inc

NAME OF BUSINESS(DBA)

Fiesta Mexican Restaurant

BUSINESS

(515) 802-7464

ADDRESS OF PREMISES

720 Pacha Parkway Suite 2 & 3

PREMISES SUITE/APT NUMBER CITY

North Liberty

COUNTY

Johnson

ZIP

52317

MAILING ADDRESS

720 Pacha Parkway Suite 2 & 3

CITY

North Liberty

STATE

Iowa

ZIP

52317

Contact Person

NAME

Antonio Berber

PHONE

(515) 802-7464

EMAIL

antonio@fiestagroupinc.com

License Information

LICENSE NUMBER

LC0044005

LICENSE/PERMIT TYPE

Class C Liquor License

TERM

12 Month

STATUS

Submitted
to Local
Authority

TENTATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE

Nov 1, 2022

TENTATIVE EXPIRATION DATE

Oct 31, 2023

LAST DAY OF BUSINESS

SUB-PERMITS

Class C Liquor License



Page 2 of 2

PRIVILEGES

Sunday Service

Status of Business

BUSINESS TYPE

Privately Held Corporation

Ownership

Individual Owners

NAME CITY STATE ZIP POSITION % OF OWNERSHIP U.S. CITIZEN

Antonio Berber Adel Iowa 50003 President 100.00 Yes

Insurance Company Information

INSURANCE COMPANY

Society Insurance

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE

Nov 1, 2022

POLICY EXPIRATION DATE

Nov 1, 2023

DRAM CANCEL DATE OUTDOOR SERVICE EFFECTIVE
DATE

OUTDOOR SERVICE EXPIRATION
DATE

BOND EFFECTIVE DATE TEMP TRANSFER EFFECTIVE
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EXPIRATION
DATE



 
 
   

    
 

              State of Iowa ABD approval statement from the following county department 
 
 

 
Legal Name of Applicant:  

 
Name of Business (DBA):       

 
Address of Business: _______________________________________________ 
 
 
Business Phone:  
 
 
Email:                                        _______________________________________________                         
 
 
State of Iowa ABD License #: ______________________________________________ 

 
 
 

 
  
 
 

Johnson County Health Department: 
 

The above referenced business possesses a valid Johnson County Public Health food license. 
 
 
 
 
Name: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________________________  Date: _________________ 
 
Signature: _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 

  



 
 

   North Liberty Police Department 
                    340 N Main St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626-5724/Fax: 5743 

 
 
October 5, 2022 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Fiesta Mexican Restaurant   
  720 Pacha Parkway Units 2 & 3 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
  
Owners: Antonio Berber (DOB: 1985)                  
 

The North Liberty Police Department does not have any documented contacts with the 
owners or premise in conflict with their liquor license. 

I recommend the license be granted. 

This record check was conducted by Sergeant Mitch Seymour. 
 
 

  



Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection

Inspection Date: 10/19/2022 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 10:58 Time Out: 11:26

Authorized Date: 10/19/2022 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Next Inspection Date: No Inspection Scheduled

Occupancy: Fiesta Mexican Restaurant
Occupancy ID: AZUL01

Address: 720 Pacha PKY  Apt/Suite #2-3
North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.3

Emergency Lights & Exit Signs

Emergency Lighting - Illumination

Status: FAIL
Notes: Emergency Light by Office has one bulb not working.

1008.3.4 Duration. The emergency power system shall provide power for a duration of not less than 90 minutes and shall consist of storage batteries, unit 
equipment or an on-site generator. 

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.  
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Page 1 of 3Printed on 10/19/22 at 14:44:01



Electrical Rooms / Electrical Wiring

Electrical Rooms Labeled 

Status: FAIL
Notes: Office Door, post permanent letters "Electrical" or "Electrical Room". At least 1" tall.

605.3.1 Labeling. Labeling.Doors into electrical control panel rooms shall be marked with a plainly visible and legible sign stating ELECTRICAL ROOM or 
similar approved wording.

Kitchen Hood System

Kitchen Hood and Duct Cleaned- Current Inspection Tag on Hood 

Status: FAIL
Notes: Fire Department does not have a current kitchen hood exhaust cleaning/inspection report on file. Contact your kitchen 
hood cleaning company and have them submit the inspection report to www.thecomplianceengine.com. Was completed by 
Perfection Clean in April of 2022.

609.3.3.1 Inspection. Hoods, grease-removal devices, fans, ducts and other appurtenances shall be inspected at intervals specified in Table 609.3.3.1 or as 
approved by the fire code official. Inspections shall be completed by qualified individuals.

Kitchen Hood All Grease Filters in Place

Status: FAILED & CORRECTED
Notes: Ensure all kitchen hood grease filters are in place while cooking and there are no gaps between the filters. Corrected 
during inspection.

609.3.1 Ventilation system. The ventilation system in connection with hoods shall be operated at the required rate of air movement, and classified grease 
filters shall be in place when equipment under a kitchen grease hood is used.

Page 2 of 3Printed on 10/19/22 at 14:44:01



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 28 minutes

Inspection Time: 28 minutes

Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Miscellaneous

No Other Unsafe Conditions 

Status: FAIL
Notes: Electrical outlet by Hand Sink shows signs of damage. Replace with a new receptacle outlet. (Picture did not save to 
this report)

110.4 Abatement. The owner, the owner’s authorized agent, operator or occupant of a building or premises deemed unsafe by the fire code official shall abate 
or cause to be abated or corrected such unsafe conditions either by repair, rehabilitation, demolition or other approved corrective action.

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): 319-626-5709
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 10/19/2022 11:14

Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Juan salcido on 10/19/2022 11:19

Page 3 of 3Printed on 10/19/22 at 14:44:01



Page 1 of 2

Applicant

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY

J & A Tap Inc

NAME OF BUSINESS(DBA)

J & A Tap

BUSINESS

(319) 626-3033

ADDRESS OF PREMISES

440 N Dubuque Street

PREMISES SUITE/APT NUMBER CITY

North Liberty

COUNTY

Johnson

ZIP

52317

MAILING ADDRESS

440 N Dubuque St

CITY

North Liberty

STATE

Iowa

ZIP

52317

Contact Person

NAME

John Hruby

PHONE

(319) 631-4000

EMAIL

lynnaf22@yahoo.com

License Information

LICENSE NUMBER

LC0036492

LICENSE/PERMIT TYPE

Class C Liquor License

TERM

12 Month

STATUS

Submitted
to Local
Authority

TENTATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE

Nov 1, 2022

TENTATIVE EXPIRATION DATE

Oct 31, 2023

LAST DAY OF BUSINESS

SUB-PERMITS

Class C Liquor License



Page 2 of 2

PRIVILEGES

Catering, Outdoor Service, Sunday Service

Status of Business

BUSINESS TYPE

Privately Held Corporation

Ownership

Individual Owners

NAME CITY STATE ZIP POSITION
% OF
OWNERSHIP

U.S.
CITIZEN

John Hruby North
Liberty

Iowa 52317 Owner 50.00 Yes

Amanda
Lynn-Hruby

North
Liberty

Iowa 52317 Owner 50.00 Yes

Insurance Company Information

INSURANCE COMPANY

Illinois Casualty Co

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE

Nov 1, 2022

POLICY EXPIRATION DATE

Oct 31, 2023

DRAM CANCEL DATE OUTDOOR SERVICE EFFECTIVE
DATE

OUTDOOR SERVICE EXPIRATION
DATE

BOND EFFECTIVE DATE TEMP TRANSFER EFFECTIVE
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EXPIRATION
DATE



   North Liberty Police Department 
                    

  340 N Main St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626-5724/Fax: 5743 
 
 
 

 
October 5, 2022 

 
Liquor License Check 

 
Business:  J&A Tap 

              440 N. Dubuque Street 
                   North Liberty, IA  52317 
 
 Owners:  John Hruby   (DOB: 1967) 

Amanda Hruby (DOB: 1962) 
 

The North Liberty Police Department does not have any documented contacts with the 
owners or premise in conflict with their liquor license. 
 

 I recommend the license be granted. 
 
 This record check was conducted by Sergeant Mitch Seymour. 

 
 
 

 



Page 1 of 2

Applicant

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY

CGR LLC

NAME OF BUSINESS(DBA)

Rusciano's authentic taste of
Napoli

BUSINESS

(319) 665-2761

ADDRESS OF PREMISES

710 Pacha parkway #5

PREMISES SUITE/APT NUMBER CITY

North Liberty

COUNTY

Johnson

ZIP

52317

MAILING ADDRESS

710 Pacha parkway #5

CITY

North Liberty

STATE

Iowa

ZIP

52317

Contact Person

NAME

Carol Gorney

PHONE

(563) 357-2924

EMAIL

cgrllc2016@gmail.com

License Information

LICENSE NUMBER

BW0095672

LICENSE/PERMIT TYPE

Special Class C Liquor License

TERM

12 Month

STATUS

Submitted
to Local
Authority

TENTATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE

Oct 23, 2022

TENTATIVE EXPIRATION DATE

Oct 22, 2023

LAST DAY OF BUSINESS

SUB-PERMITS

Special Class C Liquor License



Page 2 of 2

PRIVILEGES

Outdoor Service, Sunday Service

Status of Business

BUSINESS TYPE

Limited Liability Company

Ownership

Individual Owners

NAME CITY STATE ZIP POSITION % OF OWNERSHIP U.S. CITIZEN

Carol Gorney iowa city Iowa 52240 manager 45.00 Yes

Gennaro Rusciano Iowa City Iowa 52240 owner/ chef 55.00 No

Insurance Company Information

INSURANCE COMPANY

Illinois Casualty Co

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE

Oct 23, 2022

POLICY EXPIRATION DATE

Oct 22, 2023

DRAM CANCEL DATE OUTDOOR SERVICE EFFECTIVE
DATE

OUTDOOR SERVICE EXPIRATION
DATE

BOND EFFECTIVE DATE TEMP TRANSFER EFFECTIVE
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EXPIRATION
DATE



 
 

   North Liberty Police Department 
                    340 N Main St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626-5724/Fax: 5743 

     

 
October 5, 2022 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Rusciano’s Authentic Taste of Napoli   
  710 Pacha Parkway Suite 5 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
  
Owners: Carol Gorney  (DOB: 1963) 
  Gennaro Rusciano  (DOB: 1982)            
 

The North Liberty Police Department does not have any documented contacts with the 
owners or premise in conflict with their liquor license. 

 

 I recommend the license be granted. 

 

 This record check was conducted by Sergeant Mitch Seymour. 
 
 

  



Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection

Inspection Date: 10/19/2022 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 10:25 Time Out: 10:56

Authorized Date: 10/19/2022 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Next Inspection Date: No Inspection Scheduled

Occupancy: Rusciano's Authentic Taste of Napoli
Occupancy ID: 995222

Address: 710 Pacha PKY  Apt/Suite #5
North Liberty IA 52317

Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 31 minutes

Inspection Time: 31 minutes

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.3

Combustible, General & Outside Storage 

Proper Ceiling Clearance - 18"/24"

Status: FAIL
Notes: Maintain at least 18" of clearance from top of storage to the sprinkler heads.

315.3.1 Ceiling clearance. Storage shall be maintained 2 feet or more below the ceiling in non-sprinklered areas of buildings or not less than 18 inches below 
sprinkler head deflectors in sprinklered areas of buildings.

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.  
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Page 1 of 2Printed on 10/19/22 at 14:46:26



Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): 319-626-5709
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 10/19/2022 10:49

Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Gennaro Rusciano  on 10/19/2022 10:55

Page 2 of 2Printed on 10/19/22 at 14:46:26



Page 1 of 2

Applicant

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY

ANDALE CANTINA, INC.

NAME OF BUSINESS(DBA)

ANDALE CANTINA INC

BUSINESS

(319) 530-7158

ADDRESS OF PREMISES

780 Community DriveWickham

PREMISES SUITE/APT NUMBER CITY

North Liberty

COUNTY

Johnson

ZIP

52317

MAILING ADDRESS

780 Community DriveWickham

CITY

North Liberty

STATE

Iowa

ZIP

52317

Contact Person

NAME

EMILIO ESTRADA

PHONE

(319) 530-7158

EMAIL

emilioiowa@icloud.com

License Information

LICENSE NUMBER LICENSE/PERMIT TYPE

Class C Liquor License

TERM

12 Month

STATUS

Submitted
to Local
Authority

TENTATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE

Sep 27, 2022

TENTATIVE EXPIRATION DATE

Sep 26, 2023

LAST DAY OF BUSINESS

SUB-PERMITS

Class C Liquor License



Page 2 of 2

PRIVILEGES

Sunday Service

Status of Business

BUSINESS TYPE

Privately Held Corporation

Ownership

Individual Owners

NAME CITY STATE ZIP POSITION
% OF
OWNERSHIP

U.S.
CITIZEN

EMILIO
ESTRADA

North
Liberty

Iowa 52317 PRESIDENT 50.00 Yes

sari estrada North
Liberty

Iowa 52317 secretary 50.00 Yes

Insurance Company Information

INSURANCE COMPANY

United Fire & Casualty Company

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE

Sep 27, 2022

POLICY EXPIRATION DATE

Sep 27, 2023

DRAM CANCEL DATE OUTDOOR SERVICE EFFECTIVE
DATE

OUTDOOR SERVICE EXPIRATION
DATE

BOND EFFECTIVE DATE TEMP TRANSFER EFFECTIVE
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EXPIRATION
DATE



 
 

   North Liberty Police Department 
                    340 N Main St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626-5724/Fax: 5743 

 
 
September 13, 2022 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Andale Cantina   
  780 Community Dr Ste 1 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
  
Owners: Emilio Estrada  (DOB:  05/1977)  
  Sara Estrada  (DOB:   03/1979)              
 

The North Liberty Police Department does not have any documented contacts with the 
owner(s) or premise in conflict with their liquor license. 

 I recommend the license be granted. 

This record check was conducted by Sergeant Mitch Seymour.    

 
 

  





$362,066.33

10/18/2022



Page 1 of 3

Form 831240  (12-20)

CHANGE ORDER 

For Local Public Agency Projects

Non-Substantial:

Substantial:

No.: 13

Contract Work Type:PCC Pavement - Grade & Replace

Accounting ID No. (5-digit number):37719 Project Number: STP-U-5557(622)--70-52

Date Prepared: September 19, 2022Contractor:Peterson Contractors Inc.

Local Public Agency: City of North Liberty

Administering Office 

Concurrence Date

Change Order No.:13

Accounting ID No.(5-digit number):37719

 

You are hereby authorized to make the following changes to the contract documents. 

 

 A - Description of change to be made:

0010 - "CLEARING AND GRUBBING." 

INCREASE the contract quantity from 737.00 UNIT to 815.40 UNIT (+78.40 UNIT) to match measured quantity. 

 

0060 - "TOPSOIL, STRIP, SALVAGE AND SPREAD." 

INCREASE the contract quantity from 5,335.00 CY to 6,054.00 CY (+719.00 CY) to correct an identified error in the bid plan 

quantity and to account for field adjustments. 

 

0190 - "PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE OVERLAY, PLACEMENT ONLY (BONDED)." 

DECREASE contract quantity from 177.00 SY to 164.25 SY (-12.75 SY) to reflect field conditions and match measured quantity. 

 

0620 - "REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT." 

INCREASE the contract quantity from 16,606.00 SY to 16,607.58 SY (+1.58 SY) to reflect measured temporary pavement removal 

beyond estimated quantity at STA 95+00 LT. 

 

0640 - "RECREATIONAL TRAIL, PCC, 6 IN." 

DECREASE contract quantity from 4,340.00 SY to 4,298.00 SY (-42.00 SY) to correct an identified error in the bid plan quantity. 

 

0670 - "SIDEWALK, PCC, 5 IN." 

INCREASE the contract quantity from 1,707.76 SY to 1,710.19 SY (+2.43 SY) to account for field adjustments at STA 95+45 LT. 

 

1400 - "PCC BANDING, 8 IN. THICK." 

INCREASE the contract quantity from 392.00 SY to 434.00 SY (+42.00 SY) to correct an identified error in the bid plan quantity.   

 

1450 - "NATIVE GRASS SEEDING." 

INCREASE the contract quantity from 1.30 AC to 1.47 AC (+0.17 AC) to account for plan adjustments to seed limits. 

 

8041 - ADD an item for "SEEDBED PREPARATION, WEED REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL"  (2599-9999010). 

 

Work consists of tilling up all weeds and vegetative growth in the areas to receive final restoration (permanent urban and native 

seeding), stockpiling the material and hauling off-site.  Method of Measurement: Item will not be measured separately for payment.  

Basis of Payment: Lump Sum.  This payment is full compensation for all labor, equipment and materials necessary to satisfactorily 

till and remove all weeds and vegetative growth from the permanent restoration areas.
 

B - Reason for change:

0010 - Adjust quantity to match additional measured quantity. 

 

0060 - Adjust quantity to correct error in the original topsoil limits used for the original plan quantity and to account for field 

adjustments. 

 

0190 - Adjust quantity to reflect field conditions (precast culvert fillets are narrower than the width used to calculate plan quantity) 

and match measured quantity. 

 

0620 - Adjust quantity to account for measured removal beyond estimated quantity at STA 95+00 LT (temporary pavement for 

winter lane opening). 

 

0640 - Adjust quantity to correct an identified error in the bid plan quantity (ramps and landings at Quail Creek Plaza driveway to be 

paid as 8" PCC Banding per plans and specs). 

 

 



Page 2 of 3

Form 831240  (12-20)

 

 

 

0670 - Adjust quantity to account for field adjustments at STA 95+45 LT (sidewalk connection to old Casey's driveway at Zeller St). 

 

1400 - Adjust quantity to correct an identified error in the bid plan quantity (ramps and landings at Quail Creek Plaza driveway to be 

paid as 8" PCC Banding per plans and specs). 

 

1450 - Adjust quantity to account for plan adjustments issued for the native seed limits. 

 

8041 - Owner requested all temporary vegetative growth be removed prior to final restoration work (instead of mowing and seeding 

over the vegetation as allowed by Standard Specification 2601.03,B.,4.). 

 

C - Settlement for cost(s) of change as follows with items addressed in Sections F and/or G:

0010 - Contract Unit Price 

0060 - Contract Unit Price 

0190 - Contract Unit Price 

0620 - Contract Unit Price 

0640 - Contract Unit Price 

0670 - Contract Unit Price 

1400 - Contract Unit Price 

1450 - Contract Unit Price 

8041 - Agreed Lump Sum 

  

D - Justification for cost(s) (See I.M. 6.000, Attachment D, Chapter 2.36, for acceptable justification):

8041 - An agreed upon lump sum price for the work was established.  Cost is considered reasonable based on estimated labor, 

materials and equipment anticipated to complete the work.  The cost includes 10% prime contractor markup per Standard 

Specification 1109.03,B.,3.

E - Contract time adjustment:           No Working Days added            Working Days added:              Unknown at this time 

Justification for selection:



Page 3 of 3

Form 831240  (12-20)

Accounting ID No.(5-digit number):37719

Change Order No.:13

F - Items included in contract:

Participating        For deductions enter as 

"-x.xx"

Federal- 

aid

State- 

aid

Line 

Number
Item Description

Unit Price 

.xx

Quantity 

.xxx

Amount 

.xx

X 0010 CLEARING AND GRUBBING  $85.00  78.400  $6,664.00

X 0060 TOPSOIL, STRIP, SALVAGE AND SPREAD  $8.55  719.000  $6,147.45

X 0190
PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE OVERLAY, 

PLACEMENT ONLY (BONDED)
 $10.00 -12.750 -$127.50

X 0620 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT  $6.15  1.580  $9.72

X 0640
RECREATIONAL TRAIL, PORTLAND CEMENT 

CONCRETE, 6 IN.
 $40.00 -42.000 -$1,680.00

X 0670 SIDEWALK, P.C. CONCRETE, 5 IN.  $55.00  2.430  $133.65

X 1400 PCC BANDING, 8 IN. THICK  $70.50  42.000  $2,961.00

X 1450 NATIVE GRASS SEEDING  $900.00  0.170  $153.00

    Add Row Delete Row TOTAL  $14,261.32

G - Items not included in contract:

Participating        For deductions enter as 

"-x.xx"

Federal- 

aid

State- 

aid

Change 

Number
Item Number Item Description

Unit Price 

.xx

Quantity 

.xxx

Amount 

.xx

8041 2599-9999010

SEEDBED PREPARATION, 

WEED REMOVAL AND 

DISPOSAL

 $1.00  4,840.000  $4,840.00

    Add Row Delete Row TOTAL  $4,840.00

H. Signatures 

 

 

Signatures will be applied through DocExpress.



159,460.50

10 / 05 / 22



 

Comprehensive Plan 
Presentation 

 
    



City Council

October 25, 2022



1. Connected to Tomorrow process
2. Engagement to date
3. Planning elements

AGENDA



Connected to Tomorrow Process

What is a Comprehensive Plan:
• A guide for development policy.

• A context for making key land use and public 
investment decisions.

• A vision for the city’s future.

• A tool to guide city priorities and directions, including 
capital improvement programming.

• A strategic document that is adapted to the specific 
needs and hopes of the city.

Versus the 2013 Plan, Connected to Tomorrow…
• Provides more clarity on the future land use map.

• Allows flexibility for more uses and arrangements.

• Coordinates other plans and projects

• Expands growth areas.

• Targets policy recommendations.

What has been done?



Advisory Committee

Committee Members
• Austin Korns
• Barry A'Hearn
• Eva Anderson 
• Josey Bathke
• Martha Stoaks
• Mike Bails 
• Nick Kaeding
• RaQuishia Harrington 
• Richard Grugin

Advisory CommitteeCity of North Liberty

RDG Planning & Design 
Team

Citizen Engagement

Staff
• Ryan Rusnak, Planning Director
• Nick Bergus, Communications Director



Connected to Tomorrow Process

Project 
Launch

Input Tomorrow: 
Land Use & 
Special Area 

Concepts

Tomorrow:
Plan Elements

Implementation

Approval
Nov-Dec 2022

Today: 
Collect and 

Analyze Data



Connected to Tomorrow Process

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV



1. Connected to Tomorrow process
2. Engagement to date
3. Planning elements

AGENDA



Engagement to date northlibertyiowa.org/ConnectedToTomorrow



Engagement to date

Most comments:
• Park space on north side

• General traffic flow and street 
connections

• Trail and sidewalk safety, safe routes to 
school

• Various development related comments 
– mixed-use, single-family

northlibertyiowa.org/ConnectedToTomorrow



Engagement to date northlibertyiowa.org/ConnectedToTomorrow



Engagement to date northlibertyiowa.org/ConnectedToTomorrow



1. Connected to Tomorrow process
2. Engagement to date
3. Planning elements

AGENDA



Planning elements > Growth needs

Historical Population Growth



Planning elements > Growth needs

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040

North Liberty Growth Rate Scenarios

Natural Growth 1990-2020 2010-2020 Construction Activity

Scenario 3.5% Scenario 3.5%-2% Scenario 2.5% +



Planning elements > Growth needs

SUMMARY PLANNING NEEDS at 3.5% annual growth

Land Use Scenario

Residential ~3,000 acres
Commercial 450-500 acres
Industrial* 500-600 acres
Parks Varies
*Industrial uses for North Liberty could fall more toward business park type development



Planning elements > Transportation Approach

The Future Transportation 
Plan is:
1. High Level – Not every 

needed street is shown

2. Flexible – Exact paths 
may vary; connection 
points are key

3. Service Driven –
Reaching destinations via 
multiple routes or modes



Planning elements > Future Land Use Approach

A flexible approach – What does this mean? 

Focus on land uses that share common characteristics, such as 
density, design and types of uses. Allow multiple types of land uses 
in most instances.



Planning elements > Future Land Use Approach 

Three Important Points:
1. Property Owners Decide

2. Generalized Map

3. Basis for Land Use 
Decisions



Planning elements > Future Land Use Approach

Common Principles across the land use map:
• Mixed Land Uses
• Environmental Preservation
• Active Mobility
• Commerce Ready



Planning elements > Special policy areas

Cherry Street/Old Town: 
How should these areas be treated 
differently than other areas in North 
Liberty?
• High concentration of public uses.
• Higher pedestrian activity
• Conserve existing neighborhoods, 

affordable housing options
• Art, culture, and experiences
• Variety of uses 

– Restaurant
– Entertainment
– Recreation
– Civic
– Housing



Planning elements > Special policy areas

Forevergreen Road and Ranshaw: 
How should these areas be treated 
differently than other areas in North 
Liberty?
• A new neighborhood
• Active public spaces near 

Forevergreen Road
• Community park space
• A mix of commercial services for 

residents and employees
• Direct trail access and connections



Planning Elements > Overarching Principles Related to Land Use

Mobility of Tomorrow…
- Establish an accessible multi-modal 

transportation system that will support 
desirable patterns of community, 
neighborhood, and economic development.

An Inclusive Tomorrow…
- Grow by creating neighborhood nodes and 

hubs of commerce or recreation that 
provide diversity in housing types, 
demographics, and income levels. 

Spaces and Places for Tomorrow…
- Evoke a special feeling of resident pride, 

visitor interest, and business collaboration 
in North Liberty

Our Environment Tomorrow…
- Support natural environmental features 

while taking measures to mitigate and 
adapt to changing climate. 

Doing Business Tomorrow…
- Support desirable economic growth that 

contributes to the long-term directions of 
North Liberty

Supporting Tomorrow…
- A high-quality experience for all that live, 

work, or visit North Liberty that does not 
decrease as the city grows.

Realizing Connected to Tomorrow…
- Ensure that all city initiatives, development, 

and/or redevelopment that occurs in North 
Liberty is in accordance with the 
Comprehensive Plan.



Learn more, give input!
• northlibertyiowa.org/connectedtotomorrow



 

Watts Zoning Amendment 
 
    



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

• 

 



 

 



 
 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-23 
Page 1 

 

Ordinance No. 2022-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP DISTRICT 
DESIGNATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED IN 
NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA FROM ID INTERIM DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT TO RS-4 SINGLE-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICT  
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  The Official Zoning Map incorporated in Chapter 168.01(2) of the 
North Liberty Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by designating the zoning district for 2.53 
acres, more or less, as RS-4 Single-Unit Residence District for property located at 3123 W. Hauer 
Drive NE.  The property is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Auditor's Parcel 2022036, in accordance to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 65 at 
Page 333 of the records of the Johnson County Recorder's Office. Located in the 
Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 14, Township 80 North, Range 7 
West, of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Iowa. Said Auditor's Parcel 2022036 
contains 2.53 acres, and is subject to easements and restrictions of record. 
 

SECTION 2.  CONDITIONS IMPOSED.  At the October 4, 2022, meeting the Planning 
Commission accepted the listed finding and forwarded the request for a zoning map amendment 
to the City Council with a recommendation for approval with no conditions. 
 
SECTION 3.  ZONING MAP.  It is hereby authorized and directed that the Zoning Map of the City 
of North Liberty, Iowa, be changed to conform to this amendment upon final passage, approval 
and publication of this ordinance as provided by law. 
 
SECTION 4.  RECORDATION.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to record this 
ordinance at the Johnson County Recorder’s office upon final passage and approval. 
 
SECTION 5.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 6.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a 
whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 8. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-23 
Page 2 

 

 
First reading on ________. 
Second reading on _________.  
Third and final reading on ________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2022-23 in The Gazette on the ____ of 
_______, 2022.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Dahnovan Holdings 
Zoning Amendment 

 
    



 

 

  

 



 

 

 

 



 



• 

• 

• 

 

 



 



  

 

 





THE VILLAS AT LIBERTY EXECUTIVE PARK - PART SIX

LOT 3LOT 2

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE
 N

O
. 3

80
 N

E

"REVISED"
LIBERTY'S GATE

PART SEVEN

LOT 31

LIBERTY'S GATE - PART NINE
LOT 1

AUDITOR'S
PARCEL
2005001

WEST LAKE
ADDITION -
PART ONE

WEST LAKE ROAD

WEST LAKE ADDITION -
PART TEN

LOT 1

LOT 2

WEST LAKE
ADDITION -

PART FIVE A

LOT 92

WEST LAKE ADDITION
- PART FIVE B

LOT 94

SE 1\
4 -

 SE 1\
4

SECTIO
N 10

-T80
N-R

7W

SW 1\
4 -

 SW 1\
4

SECTIO
N 11

-T80
N-R

7W

AV
EN

UE

N.
 M

AD
IS

ON

N.
 K

AN
SA

S 
AV

EN
UE

Concept Plan Only



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-24 
Page 1 

 

Ordinance No. 2022-24 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP DISTRICT 
DESIGNATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED IN 
NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA FROM O-RP OFFICE AND RESEARCH 
PARK DISTRICT TO RM-12 MULTI-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICT 
AND C-3 HIGHER-INTENSITY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT  
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  The Official Zoning Map incorporated in Chapter 168.01(2) of the 
North Liberty Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by designating the zoning district for 23.36 
acres, more or less, as RM-12 Multi-Unit Residence District and for 18.12 acres, more or less, as C-3 
Higher-Intensity Commercial District for property located on the west side of North Kansas 
Avenue approximately 150 feet south of West Lake Road.  The property is more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
O-RP Office and Research Park District to RM-12 Multi-Unit Residence District on 23.36 acres: 

Beginning at the Northeast Corner of the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of 
Section 10, Township 80 North, Range 7 West, of the Fifth Principal Meridian, North Liberty, 
Iowa; Thence N89°03'05"E, along the South Line of Liberty's Gate - Part Nine, in accordance 
with the Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 50 at Page 307 of the Records of the Johnson 
County Recorder's Office, 133.08 feet, to the Northwest Corner of Auditor's Parcel 2005001, 
in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 50 at Page 221 of the Records of 
the Johnson County Recorder's Office; Thence S00°57'28"E, along the West Line of said 
Auditor's Parcel 2005001, a distance of 320.00 feet, to the Southwest Corner thereof; Thence 
S56°58'36"E, along the South Line of said Auditor's Parcel 2005001, a distance of 78.59 feet, 
to the Southeast Corner thereof, and a Point on the West Line of West Lake Addition - Part 
Five A,  in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 50 at Page 40 of the 
Records of the Johnson County Recorder's Office; Thence Southwesterly, 742.36 feet, along 
said West Line, and the West Line of West Lake Addition - Part Five B,  in accordance with the 
Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 50 at Page 41 of the Records of the Johnson County 
Recorder's Office, on a 1042.50 foot radius curve, concave Southeasterly, whose 726.78 foot 
chord bears S19°27'37"W; Thence S00°56'23"E, along said West Line of West Lake Addition - 
Part Five B, 16.53 feet; Thence S89°25'06"W, 831.69 feet; Thence N00°34'31"W, 747.88 feet; 
Thence Northwesterly, 120.91 feet, along a 200.00 foot radius curve, concave Southwesterly, 
whose 119.08 foot chord bears N17°53'39"W; Thence Northwesterly, 198.31 feet, along a 
200.00 foot radius curve, concave Northeasterly, whose 190.29 foot chord bears 
N06°48'24"W; Thence N21°35'59"E, 12.23 feet, to a Point on the South Line of "Revised" 
Liberty's Gate Part Seven, in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 54 at 
Page 101 of the Records of the Johnson County Recorder's Office; Thence N89°25'32"E, 
along said South Line, and the South Line of said Liberty's Gate _ Part Nine, 931.39 feet, to the 
Point of Beginning. Said Rezoning Tract contains 23.36 acres, and is subject to easements and 
restrictions of record. 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-24 
Page 2 

 

O-RP Office and Research Park District to C-3 Higher-Intensity Commercial District on 18.12 acres: 
Commencing at the Northeast Corner of the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of 

Section 10, Township 80 North, Range 7 West, of the Fifth Principal Meridian, North Liberty, 
Iowa; Thence S89°25'32"W, along the South Line of Liberty's Gate - Part Nine, in accordance 
with the Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 50 at Page 307 of the Records of the Johnson 
County Recorder's Office, and the South Line of "Revised" Liberty's Gate Part Seven, in 
accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 54 at Page 101 of the Records of the 
Johnson County Recorder's Office, 931.39 feet, to the Point of Beginning; Thence 
S21°35'59"W, 12.23 feet; Thence Southeasterly, 198.31 feet, along a 200.00 foot radius curve, 
concave Northeasterly, whose 190.29 foot chord bears S06°48'24"E; Thence Southeasterly, 
120.91 feet, along a 200.00 foot radius curve, concave Southwesterly, whose 119.08 foot chord 
bears S17°53'39"E; Thence S00°34'31"E, 747.88 feet; Thence N89°25'06"E, 831.69 feet, to a 
Point on the West Line of West Lake Addition - Part Five B,  in accordance with the Plat thereof 
Recorded in Plat Book 50 at Page 41 of the Records of the Johnson County Recorder's Office; 
Thence S00°56'23"E, 16.81 feet; Thence Southeasterly, 209.92 feet, along said West Line, on 
a 1042.50 foot radius curve, concave Northeasterly, whose 209.56 foot chord bears 
S06°42'30"E; Thence S12°28'36"E, along said West Line, 42.65 feet, to the Northeast Corner 
of The Villas at Liberty Executive Park - Part Six, in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded 
in Plat Book 61 at Page 157 of the Records of the Johnson County Recorder's Office; Thence 
S89°18'48"W, along the North Line of said The Villas at Liberty Executive Park - Part Six, a 
distance of 1302.77 feet, to the Northwest Corner thereof, and a Point on the East Right-of-
Way Line of Interstate No. 380 NE; Thence N00°52'55"W, along said East Right-of-Way Line, 
926.96 feet; Thence N07°47'01"E, along said East Right-of-Way Line, 385.07 feet, to the 
Southwest Corner of Auditor's Parcel 2004013, in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded 
in Plat Book 47 at Page 86 of the Records of the Johnson County Recorder's Office; Thence 
N06°15'47"W, along the West Line of said Auditor's Parcel 2004013, a distance of 23.59 feet, 
to the Northwest Corner thereof, and the Southwest Corner of said "Revised" Liberty's Gate 
Part Seven; Thence N89°25'32"E, along the South Line of  said "Revised" Liberty's Gate Part 
Seven, a distance of 339.63 feet, to the Point of Beginning. Said Rezoning Tract contains 18.12 
acres, and is subject to easements and restrictions of record.   

 
SECTION 2.  CONDITIONS IMPOSED.  At the October 4, 2022, meeting the Planning 
Commission accepted the listed finding and forwarded the request for a zoning map amendment 
to the City Council with a recommendation for approval with no conditions. 
 
SECTION 3.  ZONING MAP.  It is hereby authorized and directed that the Zoning Map of the City 
of North Liberty, Iowa, be changed to conform to this amendment upon final passage, approval 
and publication of this ordinance as provided by law. 
 
SECTION 4.  RECORDATION.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to record this 
ordinance at the Johnson County Recorder’s office upon final passage and approval. 
 
SECTION 5.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-24 
Page 3 

 

 
SECTION 6.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a 
whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 8. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on ________. 
Second reading on _________.  
Third and final reading on ________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2022-24 in The Gazette on the ____ of 
_______, 2022.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

GRD Burleson, LLC Zoning 
Amendment 

 
    



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

• 

• 

• 

 

 





 

 

 
 



Sep 26, 2022 
 
This letter is to be submitted as written remarks regarding our stance against approval of 
application to rezone parcel 0717376006 to C3 high intensity commercial designation. 
 
We submit these thoughts as homeowners at 2786 North Liberty Road and Johnson County 
residents and request the zoning commission, city council, and city staff consider the following 
items regarding this rezoning request and the role each group has with the development of this 
land.  
 

1. Type of zoning being sought 
 
C3 is the highest zoning allowed in city code and we feel it should not be permitted due to the 
close proximity to homes in this area, the fact that the land in question is landlocked and not 
main frontage where you would normally see this type of zoning, and because the rezoning 
comes with no plan that has been shared with the public and there’s a potential the land could 
be sold off.  
 
C3 is also a new classification, and we feel that there should be a better hold on what will 
happen to C3 areas before it’s passed as such – with public disclosure especially when the area 
is not frontage and neighbors’ homes – and consideration for the fact that land can be sold after 
it’s rezoned to other developers.  
 
From our observations, this current plot only has 30’ of frontage and 35’ of frontage is required 
currently for C3 zoning. During the Good Neighbor Meeting on 9/20/22 information was made 
public that there is a potential plan to sell a portion of parcel to the parcels owned by CMW  
Properties, LLC directly to the north of this property. There is concern that this would further 
reduce the frontage required to support development of a commercial property.  
 
 

2. Lack of plan from development group 
 
 
The lack of plan for this area creates more questions instead of a firm understanding of the 
intended use by developers. Because this land is adjacent to single-family residential homes, 
we’d like to request the city to require a Planned Area Development plan before moving forward 
with this zoning request change to show the intended use, answer questions around the 
frontage requirements, and show the density planned. A PAD would also answer questions 
about potential solutions and mitigation efforts to provide the most livable solution to the 
adjacent homeowners by laying out the buffer zones, distance to residential zoning, and infer 
where rain gardens, water retention ponds and basins, and other efforts will be made to 
maintain the livability adjacent to the homes along North Liberty Road. At a minimum we’d 
prefer to see a C2 zoning plan that has existing height restrictions that reduce maximum 
allowed buildings and accounts for reduced noise, traffic, and light pollution especially if a PAD 
site plan will not be required by city staff. 
 
 

3. Livability for adjacent homes 
 
Our primary concern as adjacent homeowners is the livability in a post-C3 zoned area which 
could allow for building heights up to 75’, high density buildings like apartment buildings or 



heavy retail use in this landlocked area that is not on main road frontage. It’s important to note 
that despite what a developer says will likely not happen, the city has the responsibly to be 
considering the best interest of all impacted parties not just the individuals with the resources of 
being able to develop land and using existing policy and code as parameters for developers.  
 
We have additional concerns with this type of commercial rezoning due to the likelihood of light 
pollution due to signage and vehicles, noise pollution due to engagement in retail space, traffic, 
and drive through areas, and lack of access to natural sunlight in our green spaces due to 
building heights and overcast.  
 
If the developers wish to divide off some of this land to add it into the C3 zoning near the 
roundabout on Dubuque Street, they should partition this off and resubmit it for zoning 
consideration. Allowing this entire parcel to be rezoned to the highest allowed type of rezoning 
does not follow traditional urban planning that slowly stair-steps commercial areas into a 
progression of mixed use, multi-family, and then single-family homes. Long range planning 
would assume this type of change would happen over decades as single-family homes become 
old and new development comes in, not all at once which in turn forces out home owners and 
homes before their natural lifespan. 
 
In closing, we encourage the city to ask for plans for this project prior to approving a rezoning 
and only consider a C2 plan due the unique attributes of this parcel of land and the details 
mentioned in this letter.  
 
As future North Liberty residents we welcome commercial development and the need for North 
Liberty to establish growth along some of the busiest roads in North Liberty. We hope to see the 
elected officials and city staff work to find a rezoning plan that honors the economic needs of 
North Liberty, the financial desires of the developers, and the livability and rights of adjacent 
homeowners who have picked North Liberty to be their home.  
 
Kate Connell | connellkatherinee@gmail.com 
Matt Potts | pottsmatthewa@gmail.com 
2786 North Liberty Rd NE 
North Liberty, IA 52317 
 



 



 



 



 

City Hall Project 
 
    



North Liberty / 421033-86 / Add’l Hrg (rr) Only GO Muni Bldg LA  

 

North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-111 
Page 1 
 

MINUTES FOR HEARING AND 
ADDITIONAL ACTION ON ENTERING 
INTO AN ADDITIONAL LOAN 
AGREEMENT  

421033-86 

North Liberty, Iowa 

October 25, 2022 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, met on October 25, 2022, at 
6:30 o’clock p.m., at the Council Chambers, North Liberty, Iowa.  The Mayor presided and 
the roll was called showing the following members of the City Council present and 
absent: 

Present:    

Absent:      . 

This being the time and place specified for taking action on the proposal to enter 
into a General Obligation Municipal Building Loan Agreement and to borrow money 
thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $500,000, the City Clerk announced 
that no petition had been filed asking that the question of entering into the loan 
agreement be submitted to the registered voters of the City, and that the City Council 
may proceed with the authorization of the loan agreement.  Whereupon, the Mayor 
called for any written or oral objections, and there being none, the Mayor closed the 
public hearing. 

 
After due consideration and discussion, Council Member 

________________________ introduced the resolution next hereinafter set out and moved 
its adoption, seconded by Council Member _______________________________.  The 
Mayor put the question upon the adoption of said resolution, and the roll being called, 
the following Council Members voted: 

Ayes:    

Nays:     . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as hereinafter set 
out. 



North Liberty / 421033-86 / Add’l Hrg (rr) Only GO Muni Bldg LA  

 

North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-111 
Page 2 
 

Resolution No. 2022-111 

RESOLUTION TAKING ADDITIONAL ACTION ON PROPOSAL TO 
ENTER INTO GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL BUILDING LOAN 
AGREEMENT  

WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty (the “City”), in Johnson County, State of 
Iowa, heretofore proposed to enter into a loan agreement (the “2021 Loan Agreement”), 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 384.24A and 384.24.3(q) of the Code of Iowa, and 
to borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $9,300,000 for the 
purpose of paying the costs, to that extent, of undertaking the City Hall Project, an urban 
renewal project in the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area (such project having been 
authorized by action of the City Council on December 14, 2021 and consisting of 
constructing, furnishing and equipping a new City Hall facility), and in lieu of calling an 
election upon such proposal, has published notice of the proposed action, including 
notice of the right to petition for an election, and has held a hearing thereon, and as of 
January 11, 2022, no petition had been filed with the City asking that the question of 
entering into the 2021 Loan Agreement be submitted to the registered voters of the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, the City also proposed to enter into an additional loan agreement 
(the “2022 Loan Agreement” and together with the 2021 Loan Agreement, the “Loan 
Agreements”), pursuant to the provisions of Section 384.24A and 384.24.3(q) of the 
Code of Iowa, and to borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed 
$500,000 for the purpose of paying the costs, to that extent, of undertaking the City 
Hall Project; and in lieu of calling an election upon such proposal, has published notice of 
the proposed action, including notice of the right to petition for an election, and has held 
a hearing thereon, and as of October 25, 2022, no petition had been filed with the City 
asking that the question of entering into the 2022 Loan Agreement be submitted to the 
registered voters of the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 384.28 of the Code of Iowa, the 
City intends to combine its authority under the Loan Agreements and to enter into a 
single loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”);  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa, as follows: 

Section 1. The Loan Agreements are hereby combined into the Loan 
Agreement.  The City Council hereby determines to enter into the Loan Agreement  in 
the future and orders that general obligation bonds or notes be issued at such time, in 



North Liberty / 421033-86 / Add’l Hrg (rr) Only GO Muni Bldg LA  

 

North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-111 
Page 3 
 

evidence thereof.  The City Council further declares that this resolution constitutes the 
“additional action” required by Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa with respect to 
Loan Agreement. 

Section 2. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 



North Liberty / 421033-86 / Add’l Hrg (rr) Only GO Muni Bldg LA  

 

North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-111 
Page 4 
 

Section 3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval, as provided by law. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 • • • • 
 

On motion and vote, the meeting adjourned. 

  
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 

Attest: 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

 
 



North Liberty / 421033-86 / Add’l Hrg (rr) Only GO Muni Bldg LA  

 

North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-111 
Page 5 
 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE 

STATE OF IOWA 
JOHNSON COUNTY  SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, do hereby certify that 
attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the City Council 
relating to the public hearing and additional action on the City Council’s intention of 
entering into a certain General Obligation Municipal Building Loan Agreement in the 
future.  

WITNESS MY HAND this ______ day of _____________________, 2022. 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

 



 

Heritage Drive Project 
 
    















North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-112 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2022-112 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN JOHN 
PAUL D. RETHWISCH AND THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty is constructing the Heritage Drive Project adjacent 

to property owned by John Paul D. Rethwisch;  
  
WHEREAS, a temporary easement is necessary for this project;  
 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their understanding 

concerning the agreement for the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between the 

City of North Liberty and John Paul D. Rethwisch is approved for the Heritage Drive Project, North 
Liberty, Iowa. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

ARPA Transit Contract 
 
    



 1 

Contract for Same-Day On-Demand Transit Services  
between Johnson County SEATS and City of North Liberty  

 
Whereas, the City of North Liberty (North Liberty), has an interest in providing transit services to 
its residents; and  
 
Whereas, SEATS, a department of Johnson County and a member of Corridor Ride, which is 
overseen by the East Central Council of Governments (ECICOG), is officially designated as the 
regional transit provider for Johnson County pursuant to Section 324A.1 of the Code of Iowa and 
has vehicles and employees available for transportation service; and 
 
Whereas, North Liberty believes it is in the City’s best interest to have SEATS provide certain 
transit services to its residents experiencing barriers to accessing transportation pursuant to the 
terms of this agreement; and 
 
Whereas, the U.S. Department of the Treasury (“Treasury”) has allocated to the County 
$29,357,173 of federal funding from the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund under 
CFDA No. 21.027 (“ARPA Funds”) and Section 603(b) of the Social Security Act, as amended 
by Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”)for the limited purposes identified in 
the Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund Award Terms and Conditions between the Treasury 
and the County (“Interagency Agreement”), attached hereto as Attachment A, and the Coronavirus 
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Interim Final Rule1 and Final Rule2 (altogether, the “Final 
Rule”); and  

Whereas, the ARPA authorizes expenditure of ARPA Funds awarded to local governments like 
the County for eligible purposes identified in the Final Rule, such as: 

(1) To respond to the COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative economic impacts, 
including assistance to households, small businesses, and nonprofits, or aid to impacted 
industries such as tourism, travel, and hospitality; 

(2) To respond to workers performing essential work during the COVID-19 public health 
emergency by providing premium pay to eligible workers; 

(3) For the provision of government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue due 
to the COVID-19 public health emergency relative to revenues collected in the most 
recent full fiscal year prior to the emergency; and  

(4) To make necessary investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure 
(collectively “Eligible Uses”); and 

Whereas, the County desires to allocate portions of the ARPA funds awarded to Johnson County 
to respond to the COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative economic impacts; and 
 
Whereas, expanding SEATS transit services to provide same-day on-demand service to residents 
of North Liberty who do not have access to fixed route transit system or other transportation 
options in response to documented public transit barriers in Johnson County that impact the health 
and economic outcomes of Johnson County residents. 
 

 
1 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (Interim Final Rule), 86 Fed. Reg. 26,786 (May 17, 2021). 
2 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (Final Rule), 87 Fed. Reg. 4,338 (Jan. 27, 2022). 



 2 

Now, therefore, the parties do hereby mutually agree as follows: 
 
A. Purpose and Timeframe 
 
1. The purpose of this contract is to arrange for same day on-demand transportation services 
for North Liberty residents experiencing barriers to accessing transportation under the auspices of 
the designation of SEATS as the regional transit provider in Johnson County.   
 
2.  The contract period shall begin on upon execution by all parties and continue through June 
30, 2023 or until the ARPA funds allocated for this purpose are exhausted, whichever occurs first.  
Any extension or renewal of this contract shall be in writing and mutually agreed upon by both 
parties. 
 
3. The service covered under this contract shall fully conform with the rules and regulations 
promulgated by the Iowa Department of Transportation (Iowa DOT) and the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA). 
 
B. Description of Service 
 
1. All transit service shall be provided with SEATS vehicles that are open to the public 
without discrimination.  Service under this contract will be provided to approved clients referred 
by the City of North Liberty.   
 
2.   Rides will  be provided from 7:30 AM to 4:30 PM Monday through Friday except on the 
following days: 
 
 New Year's Day*   Labor Day 
 Memorial Day    Thanksgiving Day and following Friday  
 Independence Day   Christmas Day* and *Christmas Eve. 
 Martin Luther Jr. Day   President’s Day 
 Juneteenth     Veteran’s Day 
 
 *In the event Johnson County has (a) designated holiday(s) immediately before or after 
New Year’s Day, Christmas Day and Christmas Eve day, North Liberty understands no service 
will be provided on those days.  For 2022, there will be no service on December 23 or December 
26, and there will be no service on January 2, 2023.  Approved clients wishing to schedule rides 
may call SEATS at 319-381-2658 to make arrangements for rides between 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
on days when rides are provided.  Rides will be provided on a first come, first serve basis as 
capacity permits. 
 
3. SEATS will provide a vehicle and a driver to operate a shared on-demand response service 
for same day trips request throughout Johnson County including those referred by North Liberty 
during the dates and times listed herein.  Persons utilizing this service must be referred by the City 
of North Liberty following a determination that the person requesting the service is experiencing 
a barrier to accessing transportation. The final responsibility for determining approval for 
individuals wishing to utilize the service shall be the responsibility of Johnson County with the 
understanding they meet the ARPA funding guidelines for this service.  Any appeals to eligibility 
will go through Johnson County SEATS.  
 
4. The referral and approval of clients shall be coordinated between North Liberty and SEATS 
prior to any request for on-demand service by an approved client.   



 3 

 
5. General public access to this service will be available to any person desiring to board the 
bus and going to and from the same location of the approved scheduled rider. The service is ADA 
accessible to meet rider needs, but if an oversized wheelchair of special accommodations are 
expected a phone call ahead is recommended at least two hours in advance.  General public fares 
for these services shall be five dollars.  SEATS will be responsible for the fare box and fares.  
Initial fares shall be: $5 
 
6. All services funded under this contract and all uses made of vehicles provided by SEATS 
shall be insured with the following coverages carried by SEATS: 
 
 a. General Liability - $1,000,000 
 b. Uninsured and Underinsured Motorist Bodily Injury - $1,000,000 
 c. Auto Liability - $1,000,000 

d. Umbrella or excess liability insurance - $2,000,000 
 
7. Compensation for service will be in accordance with rates detailed in section E.1 below. 
 
C. Responsibilities of SEATS 
 
1. SEATS shall serve as an independent contractor. 
 
2. SEATS shall assure that the transit equipment, both owned by SEATS or leased by the East 
Central Iowa Council of Governments (ECICOG), is maintained in a safe and clean mechanical 
condition and in compliance with federal, state, and local vehicle safety laws and ordinances.  The 
cost of all vehicle maintenance, repairs, and operations shall be the responsibility of SEATS. All 
repairs will be made promptly. 
 
3. Drivers for all transit services provided under this contract shall be employed by SEATS.    
SEATS shall employ sufficient personnel to implement service and to obtain the services of back-
up personnel to assure continuous service.  All drivers shall be required to have a valid chauffeurs 
or commercial driver's license applicable to the type of vehicles they are responsible for operating 
and as required by state and federal laws. All drivers will also comply with the FTA drug and 
alcohol program testing requirements and no driver can operate a vehicle unless they have passed 
a pre-employment drug test and are part of a random test pool. 
 
4. SEATS shall provide the necessary scheduling and dispatching support for these services. 
 
5. SEATS shall notify North Liberty as soon as practical in the event of any unavoidable 
interruption or delay in service. 
 
6.   SEATS shall notify North Liberty of any incidents relating to passengers served under this 
contract.   
 
7.  SEATS shall maintain accounting and records for all services rendered. 
 
8.   SEATS shall provide to North Liberty a monthly billing for services rendered in the 
previous month by the fifteenth day of the month, including the number of North Liberty referred 
trips provided by SEATS, provided the origin and destination of all such trips begin or end in 
North Liberty. 
 



 4 

9.   SEATS shall permit inspection of its vehicles, services, books, and records by North 
Liberty upon the request of North Liberty. 
 
10.   SEATS shall communicate information about the availability of the above-described 
services, as well as other services of SEATS to both the target population of this contract and to 
the public. 
 
11.   SEATS shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws, including but not limited 
to, equal employment opportunity laws, nondiscrimination laws, affirmative action, traffic laws, 
motor vehicle equipment laws, drug and alcohol testing of safety-sensitive employees, 
confidentiality laws, Title VI, and freedom of information laws. 
 
12. In the event of weather forced cancellation of service; SEATS shall notify North Liberty 
as soon as practical and announce cancelation of service to all media platforms available to 
SEATS. 
 
13. Vehicles funded through Iowa DOT may be alternated to accumulate minimum mileage 
and may be used for other transit system purposes. However, these vehicles will not be used for 
uses prohibited by federal law, including but not limited to charter or school bus uses. 
 
D.   Responsibilities of North Liberty 
 
1.   North Liberty shall promptly pay all justified billings under this contract.   
 
2.   North Liberty shall comply with all state and federal laws regarding nondiscrimination in 
relation to the services covered by this contract. 
 
3.   North Liberty shall assist SEATS as requested in the design and scheduling of transit 
services to meet the needs of the target population. 
 
4.  North Liberty shall assist SEATS as requested in the dissemination of information to the 
target population regarding the availability of services under this contract as well as other 
transportation services of SEATS. 
 
5. North Liberty shall review and evaluate client requests and agency referrals for North 
Liberty residents experiencing barriers to transportation and forward client requests to SEATS that 
meet the agreed upon eligibility criteria.  Client requests or agency referrals to the program 
received by North Liberty for persons who do not meet the North Liberty residency requirements 
will be referred to SEATS for consideration of approval under the county same day on demand 
service funded by ARPA.  
 
6. North Liberty shall provide all the marketing for this program as it applies to North Liberty 
residents.   
 
E. Compensation 
 
1.       North Liberty shall pay SEATS for the provision of the services provided by SEATS pursuant 
to this contract. The estimated fully allocated cost currently is over $40 per trip.  North Liberty 



 5 

will be billed $20.00 per trip.  The $5.00 fare collected from riders will be paid to Johnson County 
for the cost of the service.   
 
2. The County shall invoice North Liberty monthly by the 15th of the month for the actual 
number of trips that were referred by the City of North Liberty and transported by the ARPA same 
day on-demand service. 
 
3. Payments shall be made to SEATS no later than the 28th of the month following the 
monthly service period for billing purposes. 
 
F. Reporting 
 

1. Items to report on an on-going basis shall include incidents involving passengers 
transported under this contract, any uses of subcontracted providers to avoid interruptions 
in service, and any interruption of service. 

 
G. Hold Harmless Provisions 
 
1.   SEATS shall accept all risk and indemnify and hold North Liberty harmless from all losses, 
damage, claims, demands, liabilities, suits, or proceedings, including court costs, attorney's and 
witness' fees relating to loss or damage to property or to injury or death of any person arising out 
of the acts or omissions of SEATS or its employees or agents. 
 
2. North Liberty shall indemnify and hold SEATS harmless from all losses, damage, claims, 
demands, liabilities, suits or proceedings, including court costs, attorney’s and witness fees relating 
to loss or damage to property or to injury or death of any person arising out of the acts or omissions 
of North Liberty or any of its employees or agents. 
 
3. SEATS and North Liberty agree to assume all risk of loss and to indemnify and hold 
harmless the Iowa DOT, its officers, employees, ECICOG, the State of Iowa, and the federal 
government from any losses related to the provision of contract services or losses due to 
performance of equipment purchased with funds provided by the division and that arise out of the 
acts or omissions of SEATS or North Liberty or their employees or agents.  
 
H. Entire Agreement 
 
This contract contains the entire agreement between North Liberty and SEATS.  There are no other 
agreements or understandings, written or verbal, which shall take precedence over the items 
contained herein unless made a part of this contract by amendment procedure. 
 
I.     Amendments 
 
Any changes to this contract must be in writing and be mutually agreed upon by both North Liberty 
and SEATS.  The provisions of any amendment shall be in effect as of the date specified in the 
amendment. 
 
J.     Termination 
 
Cancellation of this contract may be affected by either party for cause or convenience through 
written notice to the other party at least 30 days prior to the date of cancellation. 
 
K.    Renewal of contract 



 6 

 
If agreeable to all parties, this contract may be renewed by an addendum to this contract. 
 
L.     Saving Clause 
 
Should any provision of this contract be deemed unenforceable by a court of law, all other 
provisions shall remain in effect. 
 
M.     Assignability and Subcontracting 
 
1.  This contract is not assignable to any other party without the written approval of North 
Liberty and SEATS. 
 
2.  No part of the transportation services described in this contract may be subcontracted by 
SEATS without the written approval of North Liberty. 
 
3.  Notwithstanding the provisions in "M.2." above, it is hereby agreed that SEATS may, 
under emergency circumstances, temporarily subcontract any portion of the service if it is deemed 
necessary by SEATS to avoid a service interruption.  North Liberty shall be notified, in advance 
if possible, each time this provision is invoked. 
 
N. Acknowledgement 
  
SEATS and North Liberty acknowledge the contract between ECICOG and SEATS in effect at 
the time of the execution of this agreement and understand that this contract does not change or 
modify the rights and responsibilities set out therein. 
 
O. Designation of Officials 
 
1. The Chairperson of the Johnson County Board of Supervisors is the designated signatory 
for the Johnson County Board of Supervisors.  Changes in the terms, conditions, or amounts 
specified in the contract must be approved by the Board of Supervisors.  The Manager of SEATS 
is designated to negotiate changes to this contract. 
 
2. The Mayor of North Liberty is the designated signatory for the City of North Liberty.  
Changes to the terms, conditions, or amounts specified in the contract must be approved by the 
North Liberty City Council.  The City Administrator is designated to negotiate any changes to this 
contract. 
 
This contract agreement is adopted by SEATS and North Liberty as signed and dated below. 
 
FOR JOHNSON COUNTY SEATS: 
 
By:_____________________________  Date:______________ 
      Royceann Porter,  
      Chair, Johnson County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
      Travis Weipert, County Auditor 
 



 7 

 
 
 
FOR NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
By:     __  Attest:      
     Chris Hoffman, Mayor                                  Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk             
 
STATE OF IOWA, JOHNSON COUNTY:  ss   
 
 On this _____ day of _______________, 2022, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in 
and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Chris Hoffman and Tracey Mulcahey, to me 
personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, 
respectively, of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, a municipal corporation; that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of the municipal corporation; and that the 
instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of the municipal corporation by the authority of its 
City Council, as contained in Resolution No. ___________ of the City Council on the _____ day of 
___________________, 2022; and that Chris Hoffman and Tracey Mulcahey acknowledged the 
execution of the instrument to be their voluntary act and deed and the voluntary act and deed 
of the corporation, by it and by them voluntarily executed. 
 
              
       Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
 





 

Front Street Place Lot One 

















JARO WAY (PRIVATE DRIVE)

N
 F

RO
N

T 
ST

 (P
U

BL
IC

 S
TR

EE
T)

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
0

1"=40'

4 10 20 30 40

(319) 351-8282

LAND PLANNERS
LAND SURVEYORS

CIVIL ENGINEERS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

IOWA CITY, IOWA 52240

MMS CONSULTANTS, INC.

ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALISTS

www.mmsconsultants.net

1917 S. GILBERT ST.

FRONT STREET
PLACE, LOT 1      
NORTH LIBERTY
JOHNSON COUNTY
IOWA

09-30-22
JDM

JDM

JDM

11178-006 1

EXHIBIT "A"  
BMP ACCESS

1

1"=40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT (59,102)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER FACILITIES ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER FACILITIES ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Field Book No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
of:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:



 

North Liberty – 2022 Resolution Number 2022-114 
Page 1 

Resolution No.  2022-114 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AND 
EASEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
AND MATNIC, L.L.C. THAT ESTABLISHES THE TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT FACILITIES WILL BE MAINTAINED FOR 
FRONT STREET PLACE LOT ONE IN THE CITY OF 
NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions for the maintenance of the storm water 
management facilities for Front Street Place Lot One have been set forth in a Storm 
Water Management Facility Agreement and Easement (the “Agreement”) between the 
City of North Liberty (“City”) and MATNIC, L.L.C. (“Owner”); 

  
WHEREAS, the Owner has executed the Agreement to permit the City to take such 

steps are necessary to inspect and maintain, if necessary, the storm water detention 
facilities described in the Agreement; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Agreement between the City 

and the Owner is approved for Front Street Place Lot One, North Liberty, Iowa. 
 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    
 
_______________________________________   
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR  
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted.  
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Solomon’s Landing Part One 



1231.41'

N89°55'19"E 180.01'

8,372 SF
1

6,001 SF
2

6,001 SF
3

6,001 SF
4

10,404 SF
18

8,546 SF
14

7,589 SF
13

7,412 SF
12

7,998 SF
10

6,000 SF
5

7,420 SF
11

STORM SEWER
& DRAINAGE EASEMENT

N
. JO

N
ES BO

U
LEVAR

D

PRISCILLA COURT

HAYES LANE

WEST PENN STREET

240TH STREET

STORM SEWER & UTILITY
EASEMENT

21
75,694 SF
1.74 AC.

22
409,174 SF

9.39 AC.

23
258,157 SF

5.93 AC.

19
58,234 SF
1.34 AC.

20
126,363 SF

2.90 AC.

OUTLOT "A"
732,089 SF
16.81 AC.

OUTLOT "B"
364,919 SF

8.38 AC.

OUTLOT "C"
491,810 SF
11.29 AC.

OUTLOT "D"
426,365 SF

9.79 AC.

1.89 AC
LOT "A"

30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20'
10'

71.67'

95.39' C1
45.35'

S89°55'19"W
120.02'

50.00'

50.00'

S89°55'19"W
120.02'

50.00'

50.00'

S89°55'19"W
120.02'

50.00'

50.00'

S89°55'19"W
120.01'

50.00'

120.01'

50.00'

S00°04'41"E
100.00'

70.00'

C2 45.00'

50.00'

50.00'

S00°04'41"E
100.00'

50.00'

S00°04'41"E
100.00'

50.00'

100.00'

50.00'

50.00'
C3

S55°02'08"W
115.79'

N21°30'28"W 22.54'

N
00°04'41"W

105.45'

S34°13'05"E

75.09'

S57°42'18"W
123.30'

C5

N43
°4

1'4
4"E

13
0.0

0'

C6

N2
9°

41
'10

"E
12

3.
10

' 75.08'

C7

N
15

°4
0'

36
"E

13
4.

82
'

76.25'

C8

N
00°04'41"W

124.18'

85.50'

50.00'

N
00°04'41"W

124.88'

50.00'

50.00'

N
00°04'41"W

125.57'

50.00'

50.00'

N
00°04'41"W

126.27'

50.00'

59.17'
C9

77.09'

C10 58.83'

75
.0

0'

5,
00

0 
SF

8

5,
00

0 
SF

9

5,
00

0 
SF

7

6,
86

6 
SF

6

15.00'

N60°02'12"E 60.00'

779.39'

S44°40'01"E 21.36'

579.89'

S82°10'18"W 50.46'

S69°05'59"W100.00'
S63°36'26"W 50.00'

S56°35'36"W
250.00'

N33°12'16"W
102.96'

C12

S15°23'03"E 120.00'

S81°37'09"W
73.15'

N84°22'29"W
73.15'

N70°22'06"W

73.15'

N56°21'43"W

73.15'

N41°14'29"W
84.72'

N33°16'03"W
88.62'

380.16'

6,
29

6 
SF

17

6,
26

1 
SF

16

6,
22

6 
SF

15

N89°55'19"E 220.00'
S0°04'41"E 18.27'

679.99'

S89°57'37"W
475.00'N80°55'04"W

101.46'

N68°08'49"W 51.76'

N68°08'49"W 51.76'

N38°57'25"W
103.52'

N31°39'32"W
103.52'

N
02°45'13"W

93.94'

N86°26'13"E 139.55'

C
13

S86°26'13"W 140.25'N
08

°4
8'

58
"E

10
9.

33
'

N
17

°0
8'

36
"E

10
6.

44
'

N56°35'36"E

125.71'
N63°36'26"E 46.72'

N69°05'59"E

95.12'
N82°10'18"E 44.98'

N89°58'00"E
467.96'

30.00'

S18°07'42"W
88.07'

S83°29'06"W
103.94'

S83°29'06"W
158.48'

S83°29'06"W
383.97'

791.37'

391.64'

N90°00'00"W
522.28'

N
00

°0
0'

00
"E

89
.5

0'

N90°00'00"W
128.62'

N23°08'41"W
262.75'

476.03'

C14N
00

°0
0'

00
"E

83
.4

8' N90°00'00"E 10.00'

N
00

°0
0'

00
"E

15
6.

31
'

N90°00'00"W
91.00'

N
00

°0
0'

00
"E

18
5.

00
'

N90°00'00"W
102.72'

N0°00'00"E 59.82'

N
16°55'12"W
338.97'

759.57'

C17

N
00

°0
6'

05
"E

   
25

0.
05

'

C18

S0
0°

30
'5

2"
W

   
30

0.
09

'

S0
0°

30
'5

2"
W

   
30

0.
21

'

S0
0°

30
'5

2"
W

   
30

0.
28

'

C15
250.40'

C16

EISEN
H

O
W

ER
 BO

U
LEVAR

D

60'

3.83 AC
LOT "B"

1267.19'

389.86'252.11'421.00'169.06'

170.87' 421.00' 252.11' 387.43'

662.79' 604.40'

30'

30'

30'

30'

S00°04'41"E
190.86'

C4

110.01'

150.05'

S00°04'41"E
111.73'

60'

90'

45' 45'

55.24'
54.77'

60
'

30
'

30
'

360.05'

EXISTING
33' UTILITY &

ROADWAY EASEMENT

EXISTING 40' R.O.W.
ACQUISITION PLAT

BOOK 6357, PAGE 142

NW CORNER
NE 14 NE 14
SEC. 11-T80N-R7W
FOUND CUT 'X'
BOOK 51, PAGE 246 NE CORNER

SEC. 11-T80N-R7W
FOUND CUT 'X'
BOOK 51, PAGE 248

FOUND 5 8" IRON ROD
ILLEGIBLE YELLOW CAP

E 14 CORNER
SEC. 11-T80N-R7W
FOUND CUT 'X'
BOOK 55, PAGE 190

FOUND CUT 'X'

FOUND CUT 'X'
ON HANDHOLE

FOUND 5 8" IRON ROD
ORANGE CAP #12088

FOUND 5 8" IRON ROD
ORANGE CAP #12088

SW CORNER
SE 14 NE 14
SEC. 11-T80N-R7W
FOUND GIN SPINDLE
WITH CUT 'X'
BOOK 64, PAGE 285

FOUND 12" IRON ROD

FOUND 5 8" IRON ROD
YELLOW CAP #8165

FOUND 5 8" IRON ROD
YELLOW CAP #8165

PLAT OF SURVEY - B
OOK 64, PAGE 285

FI
NA

L 
PL

AT
 - 

BO
O

K 
49

, P
AG

ES
 1

24

LOT 2

LOT 1

FI
NA

L 
PL

AT
 - 

BO
O

K 
47

, P
AG

ES
 1

89

LOT 107

EXISTING
15' UTILITY EASEMENT
BOOK 6357, PAGE 138

EXISTING
DRAINAGE EASEMENT
BOOK 6357, PAGE 133

EXISTING
DRAINAGE EASEMENT
BOOK 6357, PAGE 133

EXISTING 40' R.O.W.
ACQUISITION PLAT

BOOK 6357, PAGE 142

EXISTING
15' UTILITY EASEMENT
BOOK 6357, PAGE 138

EXISTING 40' R.O.W.
ACQUISITION PLAT

BOOK 6357, PAGE 142

EXISTING
15' UTILITY EASEMENT
BOOK 6357, PAGE 138

EXISTING
15' UTILITY EASEMENT
BOOK 6357, PAGE 138

EXISTING
15' UTILITY EASEMENT
BOOK 6357, PAGE 138

EXISTING
33' UTILITY &

ROADWAY EASEMENT

EXISTING
33' UTILITY &

ROADWAY EASEMENT

R4
R3

NORTH LINE OF THE NE 14 OF SEC. 11-T80N-R7W

W
EST LIN

E O
F TH

E EAST 12  N
E 14  O

F SEC
. 11-T80N

-R
7W

EAST LIN
E O

F TH
E N

E 14  O
F SEC

. 11-T80N
-R

7W

SOUTH LINE OF THE NE 14 OF SEC. 11-T80N-R7W

FIN
AL P

LA
T - B

OOK 32
, P

AGE 64

55.01'

R4

R2

R2

R2

20' STORM SEWER
AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

35' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

35' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

35' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

40' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

40' STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
BASIN ACCESS EASEMENT

20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

20' STORM SEWER
AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

S89°58'00"W
470.00'

N0°02'23"W 33.06'
33.00'

30' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

30.88'

S89°16'53"E 1279.12'

SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
BASIN ACCESS EASEMENT,
STORM SEWER EASEMENT,
DRAINAGE EASEMENT AND

SANITARY SEWER ACCESS EASEMENT
OVER ENTIRETY OF OUTLOT "B"

OUTLOT "B"

SEE NOTE 6

SEE NOTE 6

SEE NOTE 6

N89°55'19"E   264.17'
C11

S00°04'41"E   290.73'

C19

N89°30'05"W   1292.41'

66.97'

65.06'

25.24'

25.24'

S89°17'02"E 1334.15' (M & R1)

N89°34'14"W 1312.10' (M & R1)

L1

L2

L3
L4

S0°02'23"E 2524.17' (M
 & R

1)

15' U.E.

15' U.E.

15' U
.E.

15' U.E.15' U.E.

72.27'

L7

L9

L10

L11 L1
2

L1
3

L1
4

L15

358.93'

S56°52'33"W 145.76'

N
0°04'56"W

 2662.79' (M
 & R

1)

L5

L6

S89°17'02"E 1279.14'

S0°02'23"E 2608.24'

N89°34'14"W 1292.10'

S58°32'35"E   151.33'

L8

686.37'

L19

L20

L17

L18

N
3°12'24"W

 366.96'

17.14'

L2
1

L22

L2
3

EMERGENCY VEHICLE
ACCESS EASEMENT

L1
6

SEE
NOTE 6

SOUTH LIMIT OF STORM WATER MANAGEMENT BASIN
AND SANITARY SEWER ACCESS EASEMENT

SOUTH LIMIT OF STORM
WATER MANAGEMENT
 BASIN AND SANITARY
SEWER ACCESS EASEMENT

SOUTH LIMIT OF STORM
WATER MANAGEMENT
 BASIN AND SANITARY
SEWER ACCESS EASEMENT

L24

OUTLOT "E"
123,966 SF

2.85 AC.

15' U.E.

15' U.E.15' U.E.

15' U.E. 15' U.E.

15' U.E.

15' U.E.

15' U.E. 15' U.E.

15' U.E.15' U.E.

15' U.E.

N71°46'26"W 31.71'
N71°46'26"W 66.93'

41.67'

60
'

30
'

30
'

20' WATERMAIN AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

R=50'

R=18'

R=18'

49'

C
20

EMERGENCY VEHICLE
ACCESS EASEMENT

N89°29'08"W 1232.03'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE NO.

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

C14

C15

C16

C17

C18

C19

C20

Δ

89°12'12"

90°00'00"

59°43'05"

2°19'54"

14°00'34"

14°00'34"

14°00'34"

15°45'16"

90°00'00"

90°47'48"

60°06'53"

7°37'34"

5°09'36"

90°32'18"

89°27'41"

90°33'14"

89°35'13"

90°23'52"

123°19'43"

25°19'26"

RADIUS

25.00'

25.00'

120.00'

180.00'

180.00'

180.00'

180.00'

180.00'

25.00'

25.00'

150.00'

180.01'

258.86'

25.00'

25.00'

25.00'

25.00'

25.00'

150.00'

150.00'

ARC LENGTH

38.92'

39.27'

125.07'

7.33'

44.01'

44.01'

44.01'

49.49'

39.27'

39.62'

157.38'

23.96'

23.31'

39.50'

39.03'

39.51'

39.09'

39.44'

322.87'

66.30'

TANGENT

24.65'

25.00'

68.89'

3.66'

22.12'

22.12'

22.12'

24.90'

25.00'

25.35'

86.80'

12.00'

11.66'

25.24'

24.77'

25.24'

24.82'

25.17'

278.16'

33.70'

CHORD BEARING/LENGTH

S44°40'47"E 35.11'

N44°55'19"E 35.36'

S59°49'20"E 119.49'

N31°07'45"W 7.32'

N39°17'59"W 43.90'

N53°18'33"W 43.90'

N67°19'07"W 43.90'

N82°12'02"W 49.34'

N45°04'41"W 35.36'

N45°19'13"E 35.60'

S60°01'14"E 150.26'

S70°48'10"W 23.94'

N2°11'03"W 23.30'

S45°13'46"W 35.52'

S44°46'15"E 35.19'

S45°14'17"W 35.53'

N44°41'32"W 35.23'

N45°18'01"E 35.48'

S61°44'32"E 264.05'

S17°18'05"E 65.76'

LINE TABLE

LINE #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

L21

L22

L23

L24

LENGTH (FT)

20.00

132.00

20.00

20.00

28.83

29.98

138.44

548.50

153.79

159.74

169.76

158.35

176.93

181.79

106.68

162.10

42.41

14.91

31.56

160.92

35.42

75.25

34.78

35.00

DIRECTION

N89° 22' 53"W

S00° 02' 23"E

N89° 34' 14"W

N89° 34' 14"W

S68° 08' 49"E

S70° 00' 41"W

N03° 43' 27"E

N00° 00' 00"E

N90° 00' 00"E

S41° 40' 30"E

S64° 15' 10"E

N45° 28' 50"E

N15° 51' 18"E

N40° 46' 18"E

N18° 12' 15"E

N40° 46' 18"E

N15° 23' 03"W

N81° 37' 09"E

N45° 36' 33"W

S61° 30' 20"W

N00° 57' 01"E

S89° 02' 59"E

S00° 57' 01"W

N00° 04' 56"W

BYDATE

|

1" =

Sheet

Sheet

5005 BOWLING STREET S.W.
CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA 52404

319-362-9394 | www.snyder-associates.com

TWF

WTH

TC

07-28-2022

100'

120.1100 1 OF 1

120.1100

1 O
F 1

SOLOMON'S LANDING - PART ONE
AUDITOR’S PARCEL 2021009 NORTH LIBERTY, JOHNSON COUNTY, IOWA

CHANGES PER TC
CHANGES PER CITY COMMENTS
CHANGES PER CITY COMMENTS

#

08/31/22
10/17/22
10/21/22

#

WTH
WTH
WTH

#

#
#
#
#

##########

V:\Projects\2020\120.1100.07\Survey\1201100_PLAT_FINAL.dwg WALTER HURLBUTT, ###############, 2022/10/21, 9:59 AM, ARCH FULL BLEED E1 (30.00 X 42.00 INCHES)

FEET

0 100

FINAL PLAT
SOLOMON'S LANDING - PART ONE
NORTH LIBERTY, JOHNSON COUNTY, IOWA

NOTES
1. LOT "A" (240TH STREET, EISENHOWER DRIVE & PRISCILLA COURT) AND LOT "B" (WEST PENN STREET &

HAYES LANE) ARE BEING DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC FOR STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES.

2. OUTLOT "B" IS TO BE PRIVATELY OWNED AND MAINTAINED FOR STORMWATER PURPOSES.

3. OUTLOT "A", OUTLOT "C", OUTLOT "D" & OUTLOT "E" ARE RESERVED FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT.

4. NO ACCESS WILL BE ALLOWED ONTO WEST PENN STREET FROM OUTLOT "E" AND LOTS 19-21.

5. NO ACCESS WILL BE ALLOWED ONTO 240TH STREET FROM LOT 1 AND LOTS 11-18.

6. STORM WATER MANAGEMENT BASIN AND SANITARY SEWER ACCESS EASEMENT.

7. TOTAL FINAL PLAT ACREAGE =  78.93 ACRES.

8. THE WEST LINE OF AUDITOR'S PARCEL 2021009 (THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF SEC. 11-T80N-R7W) IS ASSUMED TO BEAR NORTH 0°04'56" WEST.

9. DISTANCES ARE IN FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF.

10. ERROR OF CLOSURE:
SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY MEETS OR EXCEEDS 1:10,000
EACH INDIVIDUAL LOT OR TRACT MEETS OR EXCEEDS 1:5,000

DATE OF SURVEY
SEPTEMBER 15, 2021

OWNER/SUBDIVIDER
PRATT REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT INC.
75 COMMERCIAL DRIVE #916
NORTH LIBERTY, IA 52317

LEGEND
FEATURES FOUND SET
5

8" Rebar, Cap #14675
     w/Yellow Plastic Cap
     (Unless Otherwise Noted)
1

2" Rebar, Cap #22020
     w/Yellow Plastic Cap
Monument by Shive-Hattery
     To be set post Jones Blvd. Construction
Platted Distance P
Measured Bearing & Distance M
Utility Easement U.E.
Right-of-Way R.O.W.
Easement Line
1

4 Section Line

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
AUDITOR'S PARCEL 2021009, PLAT OF SURVEY RECORDED IN BOOK 64, PAGE 285 AT THE JOHNSON COUNTY
RECORDER'S OFFICE, JOHNSON COUNTY, IOWA.

Walter T. Hurlbutt, PLS Date 

License Number 22020
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2023

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

LI
CE

NS
ED

PR
OFESSIONAL LAND

SURVEYO
R

I hereby certify that this land surveying document
was prepared and the related survey work was
performed by me or under my direct personal
supervision and that I am a duly licensed
Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the
State of Iowa.

INDEX LEGEND
SURVEYOR'S NAME / RETURN TO:
     WALTER T. HURLBUTT
     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
     5005 BOWLING STREET SW, SUITE A
     CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA 52404
     319-362-9394
     WHURLBUTT@SNYDER-ASSOCIATES. COM
SERVICE PROVIDED BY:
     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
SURVEY LOCATED:
     AUDITOR'S PARCEL 2021009
REQUESTED BY:
     PRATT REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT INC.
PROPRIETOR:
     PRATT REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT INC.

AREA ABOVE RESERVED FOR RECORDER

REFERENCES
PLAT OF SURVEY AUDITOR'S PARCEL 2021009 - BOOK 64, PAGE 285

ACQUISITION PLAT - BOOK 6357, PAGE 142

ACQUISITION PLAT - BOOK 37, PAGE 90

PROPERTY SURVEY - BOOK 37, PAGE 91

R1

R2

R3

R4

PLAT APPROVED BY:
THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY

CITY CLERK

UTILITY EASEMENTS APPROVED BY:

DATE

ALLIANT ENERGY DATE

MEDIACOM DATE

LINN COUNTY R.E.C. DATE

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY DATE

SOUTH SLOPE COOPERATIVE TELEPHONE CO. DATE

THIS SHEET ONLY.

Walter Hurlbutt
2022.10.21
10:01:43-05'00'



Three Million Three Hundred Thousand and 00/100
3,300,000.00

SOLOMON HOLDINGS, LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

North Liberty

North Liberty
North Liberty













 

The Evermore Part Two 
 
    





























 

North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-116 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2022-116 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DEVELOPER’S 
AGREEMENT FOR THE EVERMORE PART TWO, NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA  

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA:  
 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions for the development of The Evermore Part Two 
have been set forth in an Agreement between the City of North Liberty and DERS 380 LLC and 
MOYNA NORTH LLC, and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding regarding said agreement.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Development Agreement between 

the City of North Liberty and DERS 380 LLC and MOYNA NORTH LLC is approved for The 
Evermore Part Two, North Liberty, Iowa 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



















 



 

North Liberty – 2022 Resolution Number 2022-117 
Page 1 

Resolution No.  2022-117 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 
AGREEMENT AND EASEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
NORTH LIBERTY AND DERS 380 LLC AND MOYNA 
NORTH LLC THAT ESTABLISHES THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT FACILITIES WILL BE MAINTAINED FOR 
THE EVERMORE PART TWO IN THE CITY OF NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions for the maintenance of the storm water 
management facilities for The Evermore Part Two have been set forth in an Agreement 
between the City of North Liberty (“City”) and DERS 380 LLC and Moyna North LLC 
(“Owners”); 

  
WHEREAS, the owner of the property shown in the attachment have executed the 

Public Storm Sewer Easement Agreement to permit the City to utilize property delineated 
in the agreement for the purpose of excavating for and the installation, replacement, 
maintenance and use of public storm sewer infrastructure;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Storm Water Management 

Facility Maintenance Agreement and Easement between the City and the Owners is 
approved for the development of The Evermore Part Two, North Liberty, Iowa. 

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    
 
_______________________________________   
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR   
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted.  
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

County Road Maintenance 
Agreement 

 
    



North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-118 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2022-118 
 

A RESOLUTION MODIFYING SHARED ROAD 
MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES BETWEEN 
JOHNSON COUNTY, IOWA, AND THE CITY OF NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty, Iowa (the “City”) and Johnson County, Iowa 

(the “County”) have an existing agreement concerning road maintenance which was 
entered into by and among them and filed with the Iowa Secretary of State on April 25, 
2016 (the 28E Agreement); and 

 
WHEREAS, said 28E Agreement contains two exhibits, A and B, (the “Exhibits”) 

which describe the particular roads and kinds of maintenance to be performed by the City 
and the County; and  

 
WHEREAS, the 28E Agreement provides that the City and the County may from 

time to time, by resolution, amend the Exhibits to reflect any changes they may wish to 
enact without modifying the underlying 28E Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and the County have reached a mutual agreement on 

proposed changes to the Exhibits;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Exhibits A and B in the 28E 

Agreement between Johnson County, Iowa, and the City of North Liberty Iowa which 
became effective on April 25, 2016, are hereby stricken and replaced with the attached 
Exhibits A and B, effective as of the last date by which the City and County have each 
passed resolutions approving such replacement. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized 

and directed to replace the existing Exhibits A and B with those attached to this resolution 
in all copies of the 28E Agreement maintained by the City.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 



North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-118 
Page 2 

 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



. 1 inch = 2,400 feet

Road Segments with
North Liberty - Johnson
County shared
maintenance. See table
for details.

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B 

North Liberty – Johnson County Maintenance Agreement    Revised Oct./Nov. 2022 

Street Location Snow  Plowing Mowing Signs Notes 

230th St NE  West of 965 to west 
end of the road North Liberty North Liberty North Liberty ¼ lane mi in North Liberty, ½ 

lane mile in Johnson County 

240th St NE  
West of Alexander 
Way to the west end 
of the road 

North Liberty North liberty North Liberty South half in North Liberty, 
north half in Johnson County 

965 north  City limit to 
Hendershot  Road Johnson County Johnson County Johnson County Turn around locations vary for 

City and County snow plowing 

Dubuque St  North and west of 
275th North Liberty North Liberty North Liberty Mixed ROW. Some in Johnson 

County, some in Coralville 

Jasper Ave (Paved) North of 
Forevergreen Rd  North Liberty North Liberty North Liberty East half in North Liberty, west 

half in Johnson County 

Jasper Ave (Gravel) 
North of paved 
segment north of 
Forevergreen Rd 

Johnson County Johnson County Johnson County East half in North Liberty, west 
half in Johnson County 

Jones Blvd  Adjacent  to Chipman 
subdivision North Liberty North Liberty North Liberty 4 of 5 fronting lots are in 

County 

Kansas Ave  Between St Andrews 
and Forevergreen Rd North Liberty North Liberty North Liberty ¾ lane mile in County, 1.75 lane 

mile in North Liberty 

Mehaffey Bridge Rd  Cedar Springs Drive 
to 1/4 mi. east  Johnson County Johnson County Johnson County South half in North Liberty, 

north half in Johnson County 

Penn St  West of Interstate 
380 to James Ave NW North Liberty North Liberty North Liberty ¼ lane mile in North Liberty, ¾ 

in Johnson County 

Scales Bend Rd  
Pheasant Ct. north to 
City limit sign on west 
side of road 

Johnson County Johnson County Johnson County East half in Johnson County, 
west half in North Liberty 

 



 

Additional Information 
 
    



 

  

 

To North Liberty Mayor and City Council Members 
CC Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
From Brian Platz, Fire Chief 
Date October 20th, 2022 
Re Fire Department Report to Council – October 2022 

As indicated in my September report, fire department staff have been diligently working to 

administratively catch up following our recent uptick of building fires.  That effort resulted in our ability to 

update our year-to-date statistical analysis, which is paired with this memo.  I’d like to point out one 

element of that report, located on page two, the second segment which is the turnout statistics.  The 

bottom two lines of this segment refer to the 90th percentile of turnout time for both the part time and 

paid per call groups.  For two months in a row, we’ve seen a reduction in turnout time for paid per call 

(volunteers) members, 3:43 and 3:40 respectively.  In fact, this is the first time we’ve seen the year-to-

date figure dip below five minutes.  We believe this is largely attributed to the new duty crew program 

and ensuring we have members in the station as often as possible.  In short, the program is working. 

 

The department is working diligently to exercise the recent Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency 

Response (SAFER) Grant award.  The position vacancy announcement has been pushed out by human 

resources and the application process will remain open until November 11th.  The goal is to hire these full-

time positions in early February of 2023.   

 

We continue to work on securing land for a second fire station.  As you’re aware, we’ve targeted a three-

acre parcel on the north side of St. Andrews Drive, directly across from Centennial Park near the Harvest 

Estates neighborhood.  Members of the community were invited to attend a Good Neighbor Meeting at 

the fire station on October 17th.  Many neighbors within the Harvest Estates neighborhood provided 

various concerns, some offering suggestions.  I wanted to reassure you and the entire council that all of 

our research to date indicates St. Andrews Drive to be the best location for deployment on the west side 

of town.  As we evaluate information from the Insurance Services Office, as well as the National Fire 

Protection Association, considering both travel time analysis and distance modeling, targeting property on 

this roadway is the prime location for a west side fire station.  This location is appropriate to provide 

coverage to the entire southwestern section of the city.  This location would also allow the west side 

station to back up the current fire station as the department continues to get busier.  In addition, this 

location sets the stage for a third fire station north of Penn Street, maximizing coverage as the city grows 

many years in the future.   

 

While the addition of a second station will provide service redundancy and decreased response times, we 

also understand that there are concerns within the community.  Its my hope that we can come to some 

type of understanding or resolution to ensure that this project moves forward so that we can better serve 

the community.  Thanks to you all for your past assistance as well as your ongoing support.     



Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

North Liberty 106 112 81 105 125 127 107 121 106 990 81.62%
Madison Township 3 2 3 7 6 7 13 1 4 46 3.79%
Penn Township 7 8 12 11 15 13 4 14 6 90 7.42%

Mutual Aid 8 8 7 13 9 11 15 9 7 87 7.17%
Total Responses 124 130 103 136 155 158 139 145 123 1213

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

100 - Fire 3 6 4 3 6 4 7 1 7 41 3.38%
200 - Over Pressure, Overheat 1 1 2 0.16%
300 - EMS 77 77 68 84 102 110 82 94 78 772 63.64%
400 - Hazardous Condition 3 2 3 3 1 7 7 4 4 34 2.80%
500 - Service Call 10 8 5 7 11 5 8 14 5 73 6.02%
600 - Good Intent Call 14 25 15 19 20 14 21 19 17 164 13.52%
700 - False Alarm & False Call 15 11 8 19 14 17 13 12 12 121 9.98%
800 - Severe Weather 1 1 0.08%
900 - Special Incident Type 1 1 1 1 1 5 0.41%
Total Responses 124 130 103 136 155 158 139 145 123 1213

North Liberty Fire Department
2022 Monthly/YTD Response Report

North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Fire District

North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Type of Incident

North Liberty
82%

Madison 
Township

4%

Penn Township
7%

Mutual Aid
7%

2022 District Responses YTD
(Rounded Percentage)

North Liberty Madison Township Penn Township Mutual Aid

100 - Fire, 3.38%

200 - Over 
Pressure, 

Overheat, 0.16%

300 - EMS, 
63.64%400 - Hazardous 

Condition, 2.80%

500 - Service Call, 
6.02%

600 - Good 
Intent Call, …

700 - False Alarm 
& False Call, 

9.98%

800 - Severe 
Weather, 0.08%

900 - Special 
Incident Type, 

0.41%

2022 Type of Incidents YTD 
(Percentage)



Year
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date

Total Responses for Month 124 130 103 136 155 158 139 145 123 0 0 0 1213

Average Responders per Incident (Including Members at Station) 4.6 5.9 5.5 4.9 5.9 5.4 5.3 5.5 5.7 5.4
# Incidents with 2 or less Responders 25 14 11 14 16 10 15 4 9 118
% Incidents with 2 or less Responders 20.2% 10.8% 10.7% 10.3% 10.3% 6.3% 10.8% 2.8% 7.3% 9.7%
# Incidents with No NLFD Response 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 Year Percent

To Date To Date
# Incidents Cancelled Enroute or Prior to Arrival 12 15 9 16 12 9 13 12 10 108 8.90%

# Incidents Cancelled by JCAS 1 5 2 2 0 0 2 0 1 13 12.04%
# Incidents Cancelled by JECC 5 2 3 5 3 2 1 3 3 27 25.00%
# Incidents Cancelled by Law Enforcement 2 4 3 2 5 4 4 2 3 29 26.85%
# Incidents Cancelled by Fire Department 4 4 1 7 4 3 6 7 3 39 36.11%

January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total Emergent (Lights & Sirens) Responses for Month 82 71 70 77 82 92 86 93 68

# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - PPC/Admin 20 10 19 24 27 28 25 31 23
# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - PT 7 18 11 15 17 26 19 10 7

# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - Total 27 28 30 39 44 54 44 41 30 Year
% Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less 32.9% 39.4% 42.9% 50.6% 53.7% 58.7% 51.2% 44.1% 44.1% To Date

90th Percentile Turnout Time - (Minutes) Part-Time 2:49 2:50 3:08 2:21 2:49 2:27 2:12 2:40 2:54 2:47
90th Percentile Turnout Time - (Minutes) Paid Per Call 7:18 6:34 4:45 5:17 3:22 4:35 5:56 3:43 3:40 4:50

**(Turnout Time is defined as Dispatch Time to Unit Enroute Time)(PPC-Paid Per Call)(PT-Part Time)

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

Auto Aid - Coralville (52001) 3 4 1 3 2 1 8 2 24 1.98%
Auto Aid - Iowa City (52003) 1 1 2 2 1 7 0.58%
Auto Aid - Solon (52008) 2 2 1 3 1 3 2 3 2 19 1.57%
Auto Aid - Swisher (52009) 3 1 4 5 5 5 2 3 4 32 2.64%
Auto Aid - Tiffin (52010) 1 1 2 0.16%
Mutual Aid - Other Fire Departments 1 1 1 3 0.25%

Total Responses 8 8 7 13 9 11 15 9 7 0 0 0 87 7.17%

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

Auto Aid - Coralville (52001) 2 2 4 3 6 4 6 3 4 34 2.80%
Auto Aid - Iowa City (52003) 2 1 2 3 8 0.66%
Auto Aid - Solon (52008) 2 1 3 2 8 3 5 3 4 31 2.56%
Auto Aid - Swisher (52009) 2 1 5 2 2 4 16 1.32%
Auto Aid - Tiffin (52010) 1 1 4 1 3 3 4 17 1.40%
Mutual Aid - Other Fire Departments 1 1 2 0.16%

Total Responses 7 5 7 12 22 14 16 6 19 0 0 0 108 8.90%

North Liberty Fire Department Auto Aid & Mutual Aid Given

North Liberty Fire Department Auto Aid & Mutual Aid Received

North Liberty Fire Department
2022 Monthly/YTD Response Report

North Liberty Fire Department Response Statistics (All Incidents)

North Liberty Fire Department Emergent Response Turnout Statistics  (Lights & Sirens)



Minutes from North Liberty Tree and Storm Water Advisory Board Meeting 

July 13, 2022, 7:00 pm 

Call to Order by Abdouramane Bila-Chairperson. Board members present: Darice Baxter, Michael Burril, 
Mike Wolfe-Stormwater Coordinator, Brian Hamer-Arborist 

Approval of Minutes for April 2022 meeting. Motion by Darice Baxter, second by Michael Burril. Motion 
carried 

Abdouramane Bila opened the floor for Public Comment with no public comments to address. 

Abdouramane Bila discussed board member terms of Michael Burril and Darice Baxter expired June 30 
both have agreed to continue to serve on the board.  

Abdouramane Bila discussed the appointment of board positions. Abdouramane Bila will continue as 
chairperson, Michael Burril will continue as vice chair, Kevin McGrane will continue as secretary. 

Brian Hamer provided an update that the MidAmerican Trees Please Grant 2022 was received. The 
$1,000 were used to plant trees at West Lakes to fill in between the trees that had been planted 
previously. Additionally, two memorial trees were planted at Centennial Park. The two oak trees were 
donated by the Harney family.  

Brian Hamer discussed the tree removal and maintenance that has been done. Two large ash trees were 
lost due to Emerald Ash Borer, one at Cornerstone park and the other at Fox Run park. A large oak tree 
as lost at Creekside commons due to safety concerns along the bike trail. The bike trails were also cut 
back for better visibility and safety.  

Brian Hamer discussed that the city trees are currently holding on but are stressed by the Emerald Ash 
Borer. The treatments appear to be effective as the neighboring trees are dying at a much greater rate.  

Abdouramane Bila asked how one would go about planting a memorial tree if desired. Brian Hamer 
directed anyone considering a memorial tree to contact Guy Goldsmith. 

Abdouramane Bila inquired whether there is a one to one replacement for the trees that were lost. 
Brian Hamer discussed the aforementioned Trees Please Grant which is used to not only replace trees 
that are lost but allow for a net gain of trees for the city.  

Darice Baxter questions if the city will be partnering with MidAmerican or Alliant energy to have a tree 
sale as they have in the past so residents who have lost trees can purchase a replacement. 
Abdouramane Bila mentions that at the previous meeting Guy Goldsmith had not heard of any near 
North Liberty and this event often rotates locations 

Mike Wolfe provided an update on the mapping of storm sewer system that will be occurring over the 
summer. This is the biggest part of the GIS project and will likely continue on until winter. Once 
completed the whole city infrastructure will be mapped. 

Mike Wolfe provides an update that with fiscal year there is again money available for storm water 
quality improvements. Mike states that he ran out of money last year and had to unfortunately turn 
some people away. Community members are encouraged to apply for financial assistance with storm 
water quality projects such as soil quality restoration or rain gardens.  



Michael Burril asks Mike Wolfe how much money has been budgeted for the cost share program. Mike 
Wolfe states the $20,000 has been budgeted. Abdouramane Bila asks approximately how many projects 
this would help cover to which Mike Wolfe responded about 20-25 projects. 

Abdouramane Bila asks Mike Wolfe what the benefit is to the mapping of the infrastructure would be. 
Mike Wolfe answers that the efficiency of finding and fixing any problems is much improved. 
Additionally, any work done on the infrastructure can be tracked for monthly or annual reports. 

Abdouramane Bila opens the floor to old business with none to address.  

Abdouramane Bila opened the floor for New Business with none to address.  

Next Meeting date: October 12th, 2022 at 7:00 pm 

Motion to adjourn by Darice Baxter, second by Michael Burril. Motion carried 

 

 
  

 


	Front Street Place Lot 1 BMP Ex. A..pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1


	LC0044005 Expires 10-31-23 Fiesta.pdf
	Iaabd_PublicDetailsPdf.pdf
	Fiesta - 2022.pdf
	Fiesta Mexican Restuarant 2023.pdf
	Fiesta - 2022.pdf
	InspectionResults.pdf


	J  A Tap 2023.pdf
	Iaabd_PublicDetailsPdf.pdf
	JA Tap - 2022.pdf
	J  A Tap 2023.pdf

	BW0095672 Expires 10-22-2023.pdf
	BW0095672 Expires 10-22-2023.pdf
	BW0095672 Expires 10-22-2022.pdf
	Iaabd_PublicDetailsPdf.pdf
	Rusciano's - 2022.pdf

	Rusciano's 2023 Johnson County Approval.pdf

	InspectionResults.pdf

	Andale Cantina 22-23 NEW liquor License.pdf
	Iaabd_PublicDetailsPdf.pdf
	Andale Cantina - 2022.pdf


	Legal Name of Applicant: Fiesta North Liberty LLC
	Name of Business DBA: Fiesta Mexican Restaurant
	Addresss of Business: 720 Pacha Pkwy Suite 2 & 3
	Business Phone: 515-262-1520
	Email: ab@fiestadsm.com
	State of Iowa ABD License: LC0044005
	Name: Rob Thul
	Title: EH Manager
	Date: 9/26/22


